IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Electronically Filed
Dec 16 2015 01:53 p.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO sup. ct. 2K 9T ypkeme Court
Petitioner, Case No. CR03-2156
VS. Dept. 3

JAMES BENEDETTI, WARDEN,
STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondents.
/
RECORD ON APPEAL
VOLUME 3 OF 9

DOCUMENTS
APPELLANT RESPONDENT
Michael T Botelho #80837 Washoe County District Attorney’s
NNCC Office
P O Box 7000 Terrance McCarthy, Esq.
Carson City, Nevada 89702 P O Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89502-3083

Docket 69046 Document 2015-38447



APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

PLEADING DATE | VOL. | PAGE NO.
ADDENDUM TO SHOW CAUSE MOTION 08/27/15 4 488-490
AFFIDAVIT 08/11/15 3 437-438
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO 09/22/15 4 561
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL 07/13/05 3 379-380
OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD AND TRANSFER OF
RECORDS
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF REQUEST TO PROCEED IN 01/27/10 7 662-666
FORMA PAUPERIS
AFFIDAVIT OF MICHAEL T BOTEHLO #80837 07/13/05 3 381-385
AFFIDAVIT OF PETITIONER IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR | 02/18/10 8 803-807
RECUSAL
AFFIDAVIT OF PETITIONER, MICHAEL TODD BOTEHO IN 03/06/06 5 2-4
SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR LEAVE TO PROCEED IN
FORMA PAUPERIS
AMENDED ORDER FOR RESPONSE AND APPOINTMENT 06/30/06 5 112-114
OF COUNSEL
ANSWER TO PETITION AND SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION 10/09/06 6 481-483
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 04/12/07 7 562-564
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 10/15/03 2 14
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 12/08/03 2 138
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 02/17/04 2 196
APPLICATION FOR SETTING 01/09/07 7 559-561
BENCH WARRANT 10/08/03 2 6-8
BENCH WARRANT 10/14/03 2 11-13
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 04/30/04 3 355-358
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 10/22/15 4 633-634
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT 06/01/07 7 595-599
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 05/03/04 3 359
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 06/05/07 7 604
CERTIFICATE OF CLERK AND TRANSMITTAL — NOTICE OF | 10/22/15 4 635

APPEAL




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

PLEADING

DATE

VOL.

PAGE NO.

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL

05/03/04

360

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL

06/05/07

605

CONFIDENTIAL LETTERS FROM FAMILY TO BE FILED
UNDER SEAL

02/17/04

28-33

CONFIDENTIAL PSYCHOLOGICAL/SUBSTANCE ABUSE
EVALUATION TO BE FILED UNDER SEAL

01/26/04

1-5

CRIMINAL PROGRESS SHEET

11/03/03

130-131

EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

03/06/06

95-100

EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF AND APPELLANT’S
APPENDIX IN THE DENIAL OF THE PETITION AND
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

09/17/07

76-83

EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
CONTINUED SUPPORT OF THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

04/08/07

44-51

EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
PREPARATION AND COMPLETION OF THE EVIDENTIARY
HEARING IN THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

05/22/07

61-67

EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
PREPARATION AND COMPLETION OF THE EVIDENTIARY
HEARING IN THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

05/31/07

68-74

EXPARTE MOTION FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

08/08/06

34-38

EXPARTE MOTION FOR FEES IN THE PREPARATION AND
COMPLETION OF THE REPLY BRIEF IN THE DENIAL OF
THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

11/05/07

92-95

EXPARTE MOTION REQUESTING APPOINTMENT OF DR
MAHAFFEY FOR PSYCHOSEXUAL EVALUATION IN
SUPPORT OF SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION) AND NOTICE OF
INVESTIGATION OF MELISSA BOTELHO

08/14/06

473-478




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

EXPARTE ORDER FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF AND APPELLANT’S
APPENDIX IN THE DENIAL OF THE PETITION AND
SUPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(POST CONVICTION)

09/20/07

84-91

EXPARTE ORDER FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
CONTINUED SUPPORT OF THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTON)

01/09/07

52-54

EXPARTE ORDER FOR APPROVAL OF FEES IN THE
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

08/23/06

39-43

EXPARTE ORDER FOR DOCUMENTS TO BE COPIED BY
THE WASHOE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE IN SUPPORT OF
THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

07/28/06

128-130

EXPARTE ORDER FOR FEES IN THE PREPARATION AND
COMPLETION OF THE REPY BRIEF IN THE DENIAL OF THE
SUPPLEJENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

12/17/07

96-99

EXPARTE REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS TO BE COPIED BY
THE WASHOE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE IN SUPPORT OF
THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

07/26/06

119-123

EXTRAORDIANARY WRIT OF MANDAMUS FOR THE
RECUSAL AND THE DISQUALIFICATION OF JUDGE
POLAHA, DEPT NO 3

08/19/15

456-476

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
ANDJUDGMENT

05/31/07

591-594

GUILTY PLEA MEMORANDUM

12/11/03

140-147

INDICTMENT

10/08/03

1-5

INMATE REQUEST

10/30/03

129

JUDGMENT

04/07/04

262-263

JUDICIAL NOTICE

10/02/15

570-573

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN
SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(POST CONVICTION)

03/06/06

gl B W N NN

14-94

MINUTES — ARRAIGNMENT 10/23/03

10/23/03

128




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

MINUTES — ENTRY OF JUDGMENT AND IMPOSTITION OF | 04/07/04 3] 260-261
SENTENCE

MINUTES — ENTRY OF PLEA 11/06/03 2 132
MINUTES — EVIDENTIARY HEARING 05/11/07 7 590
MINUTES — MOTION FOR CHANGE OF PLEA 12/11/03 2 139
MINUTES — MOTIONS RE: MEDIA AN SEALING, RECUSAL | 03/11/04 2 207
OF JUDGE AN MARITAL PRIVILEGE

MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL PURSUANT TO | 01/27/10 7 667
NRS 34.750

MOTION FOR LEAVE TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS | 03/06/06 5 1
MOTION FOR LEAVE TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS | 01/27/10 7 661
MOTION FOR PARTIAL DISMISSAL OF PETITION AND 10/09/06 6| 484-497
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION 10/01/15 4 569
MOTION FOR RECUSAL 03/06/06 5/ 101-104
MOTION FOR RECUSAL 02/18/10 8 802
MOTION FOR TRANSCRIPT AT PUBLIC EXPENSE 05/17/04 3| 362-364
MOTION TO DISMISS 04/22/04 3| 350-351
MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS 07/24/15 3|  399-401
CORPUS

MOTION TO SHOW CAUSE 08/31/15 4| 477-481
MOTION TO STRIKE AND OPPOSITION TO RESPONDENTS | 08/11/15 3| 405-436
MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR POST CONVICTION

WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

MOTION TO VACATE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION AND 09/22/15 4| 506-560
NRCP 9(6) FRAUD

NOTICE OF APPEAL 04/30/04 3| 353-354
NOTICE OF APPEAL AND DESIGNATION OF RECORD ON | 10/19/15 4| 629-632
APPEAL

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE AND REQUEST FOR 45 DAYS 06/27/06 5  109-111
TO FILE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION TO RUN FROM JUNE

27,2006

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF RESPONSIBLE ATTORNEY 08/13/15 3| 444-446




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

NOTICE OF DISCIPLINARY HEARING AND POSSIBLE 07/17/06 5] 115-118
MOTION TO CONTINUE SUBMISSION OF SUPPLEMENTAL

PETITION

NOTICE OF DR MARTHA MAHAFFEY’S PSYCHOSEXUAL 04/30/07 7| 568-589
REPORT IN SUPPORT OF THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION

FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 06/12/07 71 645649
NOTICE OF FILE REVIEWED AND POTENTIAL EXHIBITS 07/26/06 5  124-127
USED FOR SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF

HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

NOTICE OF INTENT TO INTRODUCE PRIOR OR OTHER 02/03/04 2| 179-187
BAD ACT EVIDENCE AT SENTENCING HEARING

NOTICE OF INVESTIGATION AND AMENDED 12/14/06 7| 521-549
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

NOTICE OF MOTION ND MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF 07/13/05 3| 376-378
ATTORNEY OF RECORD AND TRANSFER OF RECORDS

OPPOSITION TO “MOTION TO VACATE JUDGMENT OF 09/25/15 4|  563-565
CONVICTION AND NRCIV P RULE 9(b) FRAUD”

OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL DISMISSAL OF 10/17/06 71 507-515
THE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR RECONSIDERTION 10/06/15 4| 574576
OPPOSITION TO STATES INTRODUCTION OF PRIOR OR 02/13/04 2| 188-195
OTHER BAD ACT EVIDENCE AT SENTENCING HEARING:

DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO HAVE THE MATTER SEALED

TO RECUSE THE PRESENT SENTENCING COURT AND TO

HAVE THE MATTER TRANSFERRED TO ANOTHER COURT

FOR SENTENCING PURPOSES

ORDER 04/28/04 3 352
ORDER 06/01/04 3|  365-366
ORDER 09/06/06 6| 479-480
ORDER 09/06/07 9 55-60
ORDER 06/25/07 9 75
ORDER FOR RESPONSE AND APPOINTMENT OF 06/05/06 5/ 106-108
COUNSEL

ORDER GRANTING IN FORMA PAUPERIS 02/17/10 8| 798-800




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR WITHRAWAL OF 09/13/05 3 388-390
COUNSEL

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION AND 09/16/15 4 491-502
DENYING MOTION TO STRIKE

ORDER PARTIALLY DISMISSING PETITION FOR POST 12/29/06 7 550-558
CONVICTION RELIEF

ORDER STAYING PROCEEDINGS 10/08/03 2 9-10
ORDER TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS 06/05/06 5 105
ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER 04/12/07 7 565-567
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS 01/27/10 8 668-797
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST 03/06/06 5 5-13
CONVICTION)

PETITIONER MOTION TO CORRECT CLERKS ERROR AND 03/06/12 8 845-849
AS A MATTER OF LAW ISSUE A DIRECT VERDICT FOR

PETITIONER

PETITIONERS MOTION FOR WRIT OF QUO-WARRANTO 12/28/11 8 808-844
AND SUPPORTING MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF

MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER

JURISDICTION

PRESENTENCE REPORT 02/11/04 9 6-27
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 06/04/12 3 393
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 07/31/12 3 396
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 08/22/12 3 398
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 02/17/10 8 801
RECEIPT FOR GRAND JURY TRANSCRIPT 04/06/04 3 259
RECEIPT OF GRAND JURY TRANSCRIPT 10/20/03 2 127
REPLY AND OBJECTION TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR | 10/15/15 4 599-623
RECONSIDERATION

REPLY AND OBJECTION TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO 10/09/15 4 580-593
VACATE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION FOR NRCIV P 9(b)

FRAUD

REPLY IN OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO | 02/20/04 2 197-205
STATES INTRODUCTION OF OTHER ACT EVIDENCE;

DEFENDANTS MOTION TO RECUSE AND TRANSFER CASE

REPLY TO OPOSITION TO MOTION TO STRIKE 08/27/15 4 482-487




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156

BOTELHO vs STATE

December 16, 2015
REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL 10/26/06 7 516-518
DISMISSAL OF PETITION AN SUPPLMENTAL PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)
REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS AND 08/13/15 3 439-441
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO STRIKE
REQUEST AGREEMENT AND ORDER FOR PRETRIAL 01/26/04 2 175-177
RECIPROCAL DISCOVERY DEFENDANTS REQUEST FOR
DISCOVERY
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/18/05 3 386-387
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 08/13/15 3 442-443
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 09/22/15 4 562
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 10/14/15 4 594-595
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 10/19/15 4 624-625
REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION 10/26/06 7 519-520
REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPT 06/01/07 7 600-603
RETURN 10/09/06 6 498-506
RETURN OF NEF 07/24/15 3 402-404
RETURN OF NEF 08/13/15 3 447-449
RETURN OF NEF 08/13/15 3 450-452
RETURN OF NEF 08/13/15 3 453-455
RETURN OF NEF 09/16/15 4 503-505
RETURN OF NEF 09/25/15 4 566-568
RETURN OF NEF 10/06/15 4 577-579
RETURN OF NEF 10/14/15 4 596-598
RETURN OF NEF 10/19/15 4 626-628
RETURN OF NEF 10/22/15 4 636-638
RETURN OF NEF 10/28/15 4 640-642
RETURN OF NEF 11/23/15 4 645-647
STIPULATION AND ORDER 02/24/04 2 206
STIPULATION AND ORDER FOR CONTINUANCE 01/30/04 2 178




APPEAL INDEX

Case No. CR03-2156
BOTELHO vs STATE
December 16, 2015

SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS 08/08/06 | 5/6| 131-472
CORPUS (POST CONVICTION)

SUPREME COURT — CLERK'S CERTIFICATE AND 05/03/05 3 371
JUDGMENT

SUPREME COURT — CLERK’'S CERTIFICATE AND 06/11/08 7 655
JUDGMENT

SUPREME COURT — NOTICE IN LIEU OF REMITTITUR 08/22/12 3 397
SUPREME COURT — ORDER DENYING PETITION 06/04/12 3|  391-392
SUPREME COURT — ORDER DENYING REHEARING 07/31/12 3|  394-395
SUPREME COURT — ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION | 11/13/15 4| 643-644
OF RECORD

SUPREME COURT — ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 04/06/05 3|  367-369
SUPREME COURT — ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 05/03/05 3| 372-375
SUPREME COURT — ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 05/19/08 7| 650-653
SUPREME COURT — ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE 06/11/08 71 656-660
SUPREME COURT — RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 05/05/04 3 361
SUPREME COURT — RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 10/28/15 4 639
SUPREME COURT — RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS 06/11/07 7 644
SUPREME COURT — REMITTITUR 05/03/05 3 370
SUPREME COURT — REMITTITUR 06/11/08 7 654
TRANSCRIPT — ARRAIGMENT/CONTINUED 10/23/03 11/20/03 2| 133137
TRANSCRIPT — CHANGE OF PLEA 12/11/03 12/22/03 2| 148-168
TRANSCRIPT — ENTRY OF PLEA 11/06/03 01/12/04 2| 169-174
TRANSCRIPT — HEARING ON MOTION 03/11/04 03/31/04 3| 208-258
TRANSCRIPT — PROCEEDINGS 10/08/03 10/20/03 2 15-126
TRANSCRIPT — SENTENCING 04/07/04 04/19/04 3| 264-349
TRANSCRIPT — WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST 06/12/07 71 606-643

CONVICTION) 05/11/07




\ : .igj(3.208 .

=

4185
ACMT T

m@ﬂaq,ql_,g‘—!!m

BOTE

51 Pages
2004 01.54 pp
L)

TCDD
@3/314
<Y

HHHHLI!_H!! It

i

CRE3-2155
STATE v
Distrie
Washoe

]

[¢3]

\o

10

11

12

13

14

15|

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

4185

JOAN MARIE DOTSON

CCR #102
75 COURT STREET

RENO, NEVADA

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OFzNEVAﬁA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JEROME M. POLAHA, DISTRICT JUDGE

-=000~-

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Case No. CR03-2156

vs. Department No. 3

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
Defendant.

)
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

HEARING ON MOTION
Thursday, March 11th, 2004
8:30 A.M,

Reno, Nevada

Reported by: JOAN MARIE DOTSON
NV, CA AND UT CERTIFIED, REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL REPORTER

Computer-aided Transcription
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THURSDAY, MARCH 11TH, 2004; RENO, NEVADA
-—o0Q0——

THE COURT: Good morning. Be seated. This is
CRO3-2156, State of Nevada verses Michael Todd Botelho. And
this is the time set for the hearing on the defendant’s --
well, actually it’s -- it’s the defendant’s motion that we
will be entertaining at this particular time.

Because in their opposition they made
requests for affirmative action by the Court. And that would
be the second request. Furthermore, the defendant
respectfully requests that this court enter an order sealing
all papers, pleadings, motions and transcripts pertaining to
this present issue.

And T took that also to mean this hearing.

MR. SULLIVAN: Correct, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. So we will address that
portion first because, as you are aware, the press is outside
waiting to see what is going to happen. And, if I find in
your favor, then we are going to take a recess for about an
hour or so and they are going to gather their first amendment
forces and present arguments to the court toco. So --

MR. SULLIVAN: okéy. Thank you, Judge.

Your Honor, it is my understanding that

myself and the State, Mr. Hahn, we were notified at about

v3.210
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4:45, 5:00 p.m. by your administrative assistant last night
of the press wanting to come this morning.

I just want to make a few brief points about
that. First and foremost, your Honor, I believe that having
the press here will undercut or thwart all of what I am
trying to do today which is, if your Honor rules in my favor,
recuses himself and then have this matter sealed and
transferred to another court. It’s safe to say that other
sentencing judges read the paper in this community and they
might also be tainted by reading any accounts of this case.
And we would like this matter to be sealed and all the papers
and pleadings and certainly to exclude the press in this
area.

Secondly, I think my client has an
underlying due process concern that’s present today. I
believe that the press did not comply with Supreme Court
rules which say they must give the Court a certain time line
notification when they want to appear.

THE COQURT: Cameras.
MR. SULLIVAN: Cameras. Exactly. And I believe it was
SCR-230. I am not entirely sure.

Third, your Honor, the third point I am

trying to make ties basically in with my second point. It is

just basically we did not have proper notification, and thus

v3.241
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we did not have adequate time to basically prepare for this
type of issue to have it fully briefed.

THE COURT: Well, you don’t have a say in that.

MR. SULLIVAN: Certainly.

THE COURT: That’s strictly up to the court under our
Supreme Court rules.

MR. SULLIVAN: Certainly, your Honor, I would like to
have -- filed something with the court or gave some type of
advisory opinion as to what our position would have been. I
understand it is certainly up to the court. ‘And it’s
certainly your decision.

But receiving the notification on the eve of
the motion hearing I just don’t think the pr;ss -- they must
follow the rules, your Honor, including whether or not they
did not follow the rules in this case. And I think my
client’s rights are at stake here and I certainly -- I
respect the press and I understand that they have a first
amendment issue.

However, I am -- I am fighting for my client
to have a fair and impartial tribunal sit at his sentencing.
And that’s certainly my overriding concern. &And I would
certainly -- not want to jeopardize my client’s rights when
it comes to sealing this matter and having, if the court

chooses, another sentencing court to sit in sentencing -- in

5
V3.212




V3.213 o o

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

judgment of this particular individual having them reading
the accounts.

THE COURT: Let’s stick with the sealing portion
because, if you prevail, then you will get what you want.

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, the -- concerning the sealing,
Mr. Hahn made a point in his opposition to my motion that I
never relied on any authority. And I don’t think that’s
true. The authority that I am relying on is actually the
case law that I cited and the applicable statutes for the
pPrivilege itself. That’s the authority I am using for
sealing this matter.

That your Honor can always recuse himself or
herself, if he or she believes that he or she cannot be fair
and impartial. That’s the remedy I am seeking. So the
authority for my motion is the marital communication statutes
that I have cited and the case law. The remedy is sealing it
because the cat -- the proverbial cat has been let out of the
bag and the information was put in the State’s notice of
intent to introduce prior bad acts.

The State simply could have just said in its
notice of intent to introduce prior bad acts, "We intend to
call Melissa Botelho to testify about certain statements made
during the course of the marriage," end of story.

Nevertheless, they chose to actually

v3.213




V3.214 ® ®

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

delineate what Melissa Botelho was going to testify about.
And I think that basically memorializes the State’s position
and the bell cannot be unrung at this point. So I am ~-- the
remedy is sealing, recusing and transferring to another
court. I don’t believe -- your Honor can certainly run his
court as he sees fit. So the authority that I have cited, I
will stand behind the authority that I have already cited.

THE COURT: What’s the authority for sealing? What’s
the authority for sealing?

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, it’s -- analogous to us
sealing transcripts when we have substantial assistance
clients. We don’t want the public or anyone else involved
with the case to have access to that type of information.

THE COURT: Why?

MR. SULLIVAN: Because -- it would thwart our efforts
today if your Honor thinks, "Yeah, Mr. Botelho, you did have
a statutory right to invoke the marital communication
privilege and I have already heard the information prior to
even coming to court today and entertaining this motion
hearing. I have already read it in the State’s notice of
intent to introduce the evidence, so it’s already in my
mind. So, therefore, I want to seal it because I want to
make sure, to ensure that no other court is going to open the

file and have this motion in front of them and read it and be

v3.214
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tainted as well."

And that’s the purpose for sealing all the
documents concerning this issue.

THE COURT: I am missing something, Mr. Sullivan. I'm
sorry. I am trying to segregate the arguments. And you keep
bringing them all back. So your position is that they cannot
be separated. They are all -- intertwined.

But let me ask you directly. What authority
do you have to seal these criminal proceedings?

MR. SULLIVAN: And, like I said before, the authority I
would have is that your Honor has the innate or inherent
authority to seal any document he or she believes will =--
should not be accessible to the public or any other persons
involved in these proceedings.

And, like I said before, your Honor‘will
routinely seal transcripts during the criminal calendar when
it believes that the public should not learn about a
substantial assistance client. So the authority I am relying
on is I still stand behind the statutes themselves and the
case law.

THE COURT: Isn’t there a -- a practical reason for
that? I mean, if somebody is convicted of a —-- or, yeah;
accused of trafficking, that has a mandatory punishment

requirement.

v3.215
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MR. SULLIVAN: Sure.

THE COURT: And the only way that they could even give
themselves an opportunity for probation or if they start at a
level three an opportunity for lesser punishment is by
turning in somebody else or giving information that will lead
to the conviction or prosecution of somebody else. So since
the prison system is the receptacle of afl people that are
convicted that don’t get probation, they run the risk of
going to the same place that they are bringing -- or éénding
or helping to send somebody in advance of their placement
there.

So that is the reason, as I understand it,

why we would tend to go ahead and seal that type of

proceeding.
But that is a singular type of proceeding.
This is an ordinary criminal case. I don’t
see the -- what’s beneath --

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, you would agree with me, all
the motions and oppositions to the motions were filed within
the Court Clerk’s jurisdiction and they are sitting in your
court’s file right now.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SULLIVAN: If this matter -- if you believed, ydur

Honor, that you had learned information and you could not

9
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separate yourself from that information and be fair and
impartial during the sentencing, then you would agree that
this matter could be transferred to another department with a
random assignment. We don’t know who the other Judge would
be.

That file would then be transferred to that
department through the clerk’s office. And the only way we
can ensure that these motions -- are not read by the
sentencing court -~ because, if they are read by the next
sentencing court, well, then we are back to square one, are
we not?

The next sentencing court reads this notice
of intent and reads all the other oppositions therewith, they
are going to be in the exact same position that your Honor is
in. And I’ll be arguing the exact same arguments in front of
that sentencing court. So for the sake of ~--

THE COURT: You are still not answering my question.

I think I hear what you are saying. And,
again, I imagine we are talking to the appellate record.

So let me give you my thoughts on that and
they can tell me if I am right or wrong in my interpretation.

When a court has information that it uses
for a sentencing and the Supreme Court overturns that

sentencing -- let’s say -~ the most common area is the breach

—_—
\IO
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of plea negotiations, all right, and it goes up -- he gets
sentenced. It goes up and it comes back down. And sometimes
the Supreme Court says transfer to another department.
Sometimes they don’t.

Okay. Sometimes the sentencing Judge takes
it upon themselves.

Now, I am of the impression that the reason
that is done is that they feel that because you had that
information, you acted on it, and then the higher court said,

"Hey, you shouldn’t have done that. You were wrong." That,
if they sent it back to that Judge, he may have a personal
stake in it at that point and say, "Well, ockay. 1I’11
disassociate myself from that knowledge and I‘11 give you the
same sentence. What do you think of that?"

Now, that is the only explanation I have.
Because legally a Judge is presumed to perform his or her
duties in an impartial and fair manner.

Because if it became apparent that they
cannot do that, they would be removed or there would be
complaints filed against them.

MR. SULLIVAN: Sure.
THE COURT: Saying, "Look, he is unfair. She is

unfair.”

In fact the case law says a Judge is
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presumed to be impartial and the party asserting the
challenge carries the burden of establishing sufficient
factual grounds warranting disqualification.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, I guess the point I am
trying to make is we never even got a chance as a defense to
invoke this privilege. The privilege was taken away from us
by the State by them filing this notice of intent, so Wwe
never even had a chance to exercise our statutory right to
invoke this privilege because normally the State would call
the victim at sentencing or at trial and we would say, "Hold
on, your Honor. Before this victim -- excuse me, before this
witness testifies, we are going to invoke this privilege."

So we don’t want anyone, the Judge, the jury
Oor anyone else to hear what’s =-- about to come out of this
witness’s mouth. |

THE COURT: Okay. So —-— now I hear you say that the
reason you want this sealed is because it’s your position
that the State is invoking that -- what to you is a violation
of the marital privilege?

MR. SULLIVAN: Exactly.

THE COURT: Okay. And you don’t want those facts to
be broadcast. |

MR. SULLIVAN: These facts should have never been aifed

to begin with. Exactly. That’s my position. And to short
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stop the facts -- short stop this from going any further down
the line and having other judges or other court personnel
reading these facts, I am trying to short stop it right now
with my motion in today’s proceedings. And I think sealing
it or even striking it from the record would accomplish that
end. | |

THE COQURT: Wéll, that’s -~ presuming that you are
correct in the law that this is a ;;oper subject of the
privilege.

MR. SULLIVAN: Correct. Correct.

THE CQURT: Okay. So that’s the only reason that you
are requesting it be sealed?

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, other than the -- other than the
fact that we are contesting the allegations themselves. We
don’t believe them to be true. ‘And we will ~- if necessary,
if this either comes before your Honor or if this comes
before another sentencing Judge, we will certainly address
the merits of the allegations themselves.

We don’t believe these allegations to be
true at all, the allegations that the State made concerning
the deviant sexual fantasies which I reference in my métion.
But I think that’s something for whether or not =-- yeah, the
merits of the issue. We are getting into a different area.

THE COURT: All right. ILet me hear from the State.

.\'
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Mr. Hahn.

MR. HAHN: Your Honor, our official position is that if
the press wishes to be here we believe they are entitled to.
The point that I tried to make in my opposition is that there
is no authority whatsocever that’s offered for this. It’s
just kind of an inherent powers kind of thing. So with
regard to that, Judge, I have just a couple of comments.

I don’t see this as a constitutional
magnitude and I see absolutely nothing that has been offered
by the defendant to trump any rights or privileges that the
public has to this proceeding.

They are not articulated, nor is there any
bases to articulate nor is there any bases that is
articulated for sealing. And the Court obviously picked up
on that in my response.

Judge, I would simply offer for the Court
one additional reason for the analogy that the defense offers
about substantial assistance.

Well, not only is it to try and offer some
type of protection of the inmate when he goes down to the
yard, but you are also talking about protection of the
officers, C.N.U., when they go back out on the street or a
SET team or whatever in fact it may be.

If these people’s names show up in the
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record, someone might catch their face and now them and their
families are in danger. So it is a much greater issue
involved there. So I don’t find their analogy compelling.

The last point, Judge, that I have is that
with regard to the notice, I want to encourage the defense
not to be too downcast that we offered formal notice, because
it seems like we are in a whip saw. If the State doesn’t
offer formal notice and specify exactly what we want to offer
and put the Court on notice ahead of time, then we are
damned.

And, if we do offer everything that we are
going to do, then we are damned too because somehow that’s
going to be prejudicial and will improperly taint every Judge
that sits. I just don’t see that, Judge. I don’t see the

same issues Mr. Sullivan does. Having said that, I will

submit it on my motion.

THE COURT: All right.

Mr. Sullivan, you get the last word.

MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge. Your Honor,
concerning Mr. Hahn’s last point, damned if you do, damned if
you don’t, if I understand his argument correctly, giving
notice, they could have simply just said -- we are hereby
giving notice that we intend to call this witness to testify -

about everything she said, anything or everything she said

N
N
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during her interview with the police officers.

I have the transcript of her interview with
the officers. So they don’t need to actually put in there
the deviant sexual fantasies that we are going to be talking
about. They can just say, "Hey, we are referring to anything
in that interview transcript when the officers interviewed
her." That’s fair game. That’s what we will be talking
about. That would -- your Honor does not have that interview
transcript. And so tﬁat would at least give me enough notice
to cull over the interview transcript and say, "Ha, ha, here
we go. This is stuff where my client has a marital
communication privilege and I am going to object to it."

And the second they called her up to the
stand I could have objected and made my objection for the
record. They didn’t do that. They chose to go the other
route. They chose to actually tell the Court what they are
going to be calling the witness for and putting it on the
record. And I think that’s improper, your Honor. I think
that violates the statutory right. Plain and simple. And
I’11 submit everything else upon my motions.

THE COURT: All right.

All right. 1In loocking at the pleadings and

in getting a firm grasp of what it was, the position that you

were taking, I agree with the State that the case isn’t of
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constitutional proportions.

So it’s denied. So with that, the press can
come in.

MR. SULLIVAN: And, your Honor, I just want to lodge my
objection. I am sure it’s already been lodged. But for the
purpose of this proceeding I would lodge any objection to the
press coming in at today’s proceedings.

(At this time the press entered the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Now, counsel, let’s take up with the iééue
of recusal. |

There is set out in the statute procedures
for disqualifying a Judge.

And those procedures were not followed.

Because, had they been followed, then I
wouldn’t be sitting here talking as I am talking now.

Okay. Because once the procedures are
followed, then I am -- restrained from participating further
in the case.

I read your motion as, "Judge, once you hear
all this, you will have to come to the humanitarian
conclusion that it is so packed with things that would
necessarily prejudice an individual and you, being that tyﬁe
of individual, you are going to be prejudiced so much that

you couldn’t fairly sit and hand down a sentence."
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And is that what you are asking?

MR. SULLIVAN: I just think the nature of the
allegations that have been alleged by the State are so
damning and prejudicial certainly =-- when taken in light with
the underlying facts of this case -- I mean, the facts speak
for themselves. When you couple those facts with these --
these allegations that the State has made in their notice of
intent to introduce prior bad acts at the sentencing, I think
then it become virtually impossible for any person to
disassociate those facts from the facts themselves because
it’s so ~- inflammatory. |

And that’s why we have -- that’s why we
don’t show juries certain pieces of evidence because it’s so
inflammatory that they just basically cannot disassociate
themselves from such a passionate argument or passionate or
overwhelming piece of evidence.

THE COURT: But aren’t judges supposed to be above
that? I mean, we rule on evidentiary matters everyday. We
exclude confessions and sit on a trial and know they already
confessed to their guilt.

By your logic or your argument, that should
prejudice us against the defendant. And, once we exclude, we
can no longer sit on those cases. And it doesn’t happen that

way.

N
(&yl:-]
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MR. SULLIVAN: Well, your Honor -- and that’s a good
point. You make a very good point. But that’s why I raise
in my motion NRS 49.405(1) and Hylton verses State. It seems
to me that the State legislature and the Nevada Supreme Court
did not want the State or the Judge to even comment on my
client invoking his marital communication privilege.

They don’t want the State or the Judge to
even make reference to the fact that my client invoked his
marital communication privilege. And my client never éveﬁ‘
got the chance to invoke the privilege. His hand was forééd
prior to the sentencing proceedings and that’s why we had to
bifurcate these two issues. 8o as far as -- as far as the
defense is concerned, he was robbed of his statutory right to
invoke the privilege.

THE COURT: But isn’t that statute or that section of
the evidence code, doesn’t that refer in analogy to the right
of the defendant to remain silent? They can’t argue to a
jury and they can’t draw an inference that there is soﬁething
the matter with not having taken the stand.

MR. SULLIVAN: Are you referencing 49.405, your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SULLIVAN: It says, "The claim of the privilege
where in the present proceeding or upon a prior occasion is

not a proper subject of comment by the Judge or counsel, no
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inference may be drawn therefrom."

So it seems to me that they don’t want
this -- whether it be at trial or whether it be at
sentencing, the courts and the legislature don’t want them
to -- they don’t want the Court or the State to basically-
hold it against my client because he decided to invoke this
privilege. And that’s the way I read it. And they are very
careful to -- including Hylton, where it says it’s even
improper for the State to intend to call the defendant’s wife
as a witness in violation of 49.295. And it’s misconduct,
reversible error for the prosecutor to comment or make the
impermissible inference.

THE COURT: Right,

MR. SULLIVAN: They go to great lengths to guard that
privilege. Yet when the information concerning the'privilege
is let out and disseminated to the court and to everyone else
prior to my client even getting the chance to stand up at
sentencing in court and say, "I am invoking my privilege. I
don’t want her to even take that witness stand and say one
word," well, then nobody would have known what was to be
said.

And that’s the reason why the Court, the
legislature have carved out -- carefully carved out these

exceptions and these rules. They don’t want -- that being

20
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the case, I don’t want people to say, "I wonder what she was
going do say? BAnd I wonder why that particular individual
had to invoke that privilege?"

Because now we are left with that -- that
hanging question mark in our mind, "What was that witness
going to say that was so important that he had to invoke that
privilége?"

That is why I think the case law and the
legislature speaks to that.

THE COURT: Okay. Let’s stay with that thought.
Don’t judges do that all the time? I mean, that’s what we
do. When we rule on evidentiary matters, we don’t sit and
wonder, "Now, if I overrule that objection or if I sustain
that objection, I wonder what they were going to say?"

I mean --

MR. SULLIVAN: Certainly, your Honor.

THE COURT: We don’t do that.

MR. SULLIVAN: Certainly, if we were at trial right now
and Mr. Hahn -- I am not saying that he would -- but, if
Mr. Hahn asked a question of a witness that I thought was
improper and inflammatory, hearsay, whatever, I would
immediately jump out of my chair and say, "Objection, your
Honor. That’s hearsay. The jury can’t hear it. You khow,

and your Honor can’t hear it," or whatever.

21
V3.228




V3.229 ® @

10

il

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

The point is being made that we as a defense
need to short stop the issue before the jury or your Honor
hears it. How can we short stop the issue when it’s already
been presented to the court? We can’t. So that is why the
remedy was =-- having the matter transferred.

THE COURT: Again, Mr. Sullivan, how can you keep the
Judge out of that loop? How do you do that?

MR. SULLIVAN: You are right.

THE COURT: Motions in limine, motions to bring in
prior acts, you all have to advise the Court that this is
what you want to bring in so the Judge necessarily -- because
of his position, has to rule on whether or not it’s going to
be admissible. So we are involved in every evidentiary
proceeding in every case. How can you say, "Once you are
told about it, Judge, therefore you can no longer sit and
adjudicate?” I have a tough time with that, counsel,

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, that’s a good point. Maybe
my arguments are a little bit circular. But the point I am
going to make is this.

Number one, there are certain things that
the Judge hears that he has no choice but to hear to rule on
the evidence, whether it be in a drug case or whether it be
in a domestic battery case. He has to know something about

the facts that counsel are arguing about before he can make a
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legal decision or determination and then pass down judgment
on it and then the counsel will act accordingly.

That wasn’t -- that opportunity wasn’t
presented here. The point I am trying to make is that the
State never even gave you a chance -- a chance to basically
decide whether or not you even need to hear the comments.

Because don’t you think you could still rule
on whether or not Miss Melissa Botelho, the ex-wife of my
client, could have taken that witness stand at the sentencing
without even hearing the -- the deviant sexual fantasies in
question because you would certainly look at the statute,
look at the exceptions. All you need to know is that there
are communications made between'my client and the ex-wife.

Do you really need to know the specifics of
the communications to make a ruling on that? No, you do
not. I would subnit that you do not.

All you would do is apply the law as to the
fact pattern and say, "Well, were you married? Was the
couple married on or before these communications were made?
Do any of these exceptions apply? Were the communications
ever waived by presenting it to a third party or was that
third party present to where the communication was ever
waived?"

But do you really need to know the specifics
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of the communication to make a legal determination as to
whether or not this statute applies? I submit you do not.

THE COURT: Well, suppose I do. How does that
disqualify me from making the decision?

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, that would be a point to where we
would get up to the -- we would argue on, argue on, argue up
to the crux and you say, "Counsel, I will have to hear what
the statements are before they come in." Certainly we could
have went one avenue or the other avenue and made more
arguments.

But simply by the fact that the State chose
to just interject the statements right off the bat, it leaves
the defense at a loss as to how to proceed. It leaves the
defense =-- scrambling to invoke the privilege after the fact,
which I don’t think is proper. |

THE COURT: Well, maybe we are getting ahead of
ourselves. Do you agree with me or disagree with me that the
procedure to disqualify me from sitting on this case further
has not been followed?

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, I would have to‘know exactly what
procedure your Honor is referencing. I think that -- this is
unusual.

THE COURT: The statute, the grounds for disqualifying

a Judge, NRS 1.230 and 1.235, procedure for disqualifying a
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Judge, do you have a problem with that?

MR. SULLIVAN: The reason why I wanted to have your
Honor decide the merits of the motion and bifurcate the issue
is for the very reason that I didn’t want to be arguing this
in front of another Judge. I want you to make a
determination because you have already heard the evidence and
then you have yourself recused because of not being able to
disassociate yourself from the statement. So I :guess I am
waffling on the issue.

But, no, we didn‘’t follow the procedure.
But T don’t think that this was the type of case that we knew
beforehand you were going to have to recuse yourself. It’s
because the State made the first blow and we had to reépond
to it. This isn’t a timeliness thing.

THE COURT: I am not talking about the timeliness of
the request, okay. I will grant you that -- without finding
that it’s final -- that you have got an argument that it is
timely. So I am not talking about that aspect of it.

MR. SULLIVAN: Okay.

THE COURT: I am talking about the other aspects of
it. What I heard you saying, counsel, is there are some
cases that judges just can’t sit on because they are so
inflammatory. And I do not see this as that kind of case.

It’s a kidnap-rape of a child. That’s what it is. And I
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don’t mean to be jaded by saying that. But this is that kind
of a case. |

The Montessori case, when you had
eighty-five alleged victims, you know, of five, six, seven
Years old, there was a lot of passion.

And besides, counsel -- and again I didn’t
want to get ahead of myself. I happened to read this -~
before I read your motions in anticipation of the sentencing.

And what you are saying that they did --
they being the State -- he admitted in his statement. So I
don’t understand the problem that you have here.

MR. SULLIVAN: I’m sorry?

THE COURT: Did you read his statement?

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes, I did. Actually I am missing a
page in thé statement, but I have been trying to get pages.
But I have read the bulk of the statement, save and except
the pages I am missing.

To my knowledge, my client never admitted to
having deviant sexual fantasies against -- raping or
dismembering a fourteen-year-old child to the police or to
anyone else.

THE COURT: I don’t know what you are referring to
when you say -- deviant sexual --

MR. SULLIVAN: I am saying what the State is alleging
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in their motion.

THE COURT: -- sexual fantasies. But if you look at
his statement, line nine on page one, he talks about
fantasies; that he acted out a fantasy. Now --

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, the State is saying that my
client expressed deviant sexual fantasies to his ex-wife
about raping and dismembering a girl. Unless that is in his
statement, I think we are talking about apples and oranges.

THE COURT: Dismembering is not in the statement. The
other thing is.

MR. SULLIVAN: He talked about having sex with underage
children? And, like I said, I have already expreésed to the
State that I am missing pages from his statement.

THE COURT: "I had this stupid fantasy about being with
a baby-sitter and I let it get away from me and obviously dié
what T did and will never forgive myself..."

MR. SULLIVAN: Wait a minute. Baby-sitter doesn’t say
a fourteen-year-old girl or minor. The baby-sitter could be
eighteen years old.

| THE COURT: Are you saying that specifically? You are
arguing about the specifics?

MR. SULLIVAN: Absolutely. 1It‘s all in the specifics.

THE COURT: "I had a fantasy, one of which, by the way, 

wasn’t really a serious one. Well, I got the name of the
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baby-sitter ... I never dreamed I would actually follow
through," on the fantasy.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, baby-sitter does not say --
does not equate to minor child; —

THE COURT: She was picked up for baby-sitting
purposes.

MR. SULLIVAN: The State is alleging that he had
deviant sexual fantasies. They allege in their motion that

he wanted to rape and dismember a child. Nowhere in that

statement does he say, "I had deviant sexual fantasies about

raping and dismembering a child."

THE COURT: Granted.

MR. SULLIVAN: That’s all I am trying to do. I am
trying to basically preserve a fair and impartial sentencing
today for my client.

THE COURT: All right. But we are still at the
disqualification stége. \

And the reason I am sitting on this is
because you did not follow the proper procedure. So then I
guess --

MR. SULLIVAN: And, your Honor, my response to that is,
if your Honor feels that he can be fair and impartial, then
that’s fine with me. I respect that decision. I will

wholeheartedly respect that decision, if you make a ruling --
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if you say, "Mr. Sullivan, I have read your points and I
considered your points. I have read the State’s points. But
I believe I can be fair and impartial sitting in judgment of
this man. And I can disassociate any statements that were
not supéosed to come in, whether it be through the ex-wife,
the detective or anyone else that I should not consider. I
will not consider those points at sentencing," then I can
live with that.

THE COURT: I do that everyday.

MR. SULLIVAN: I know you do, Judge. And I want to
bring it ‘to your attention and make a record of all this
because -- as well you know, attorneys nitpick and dissect
every minutia of the law.

THE COURT: That’s your function. That’s your
function. But my function is to sit and do the best job that
I can with my training and my background and what I bring to
the table. And I have done that in every other case. And I
see no reason why that can’t be the case in this case. If
You want an assurance that I believe I can do it, I know I
can do it.

MR. SULLIVAN: The other point I want to put on the
record is a lot of times -- maybe the Court would agree with
me. I don’t know. A lot of times when you make those legal

determinations as to whether certain pieces of evidence would
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come in, they are sanitized and they concern other types of
cases. |

When you are dealing with a case such as
this one, everyone in this room will concede that.a sexual
assault upon a fourteen-year-old child is a heinous act in
and of itself. The facts speak for themselves. 1It’s
atrocious. We agree. We are not here to argue that today.

What we are here to argue is that when yoﬁ
have those inflammatory facts already and then you couple
them with even -- what I would consider even more -- more
inflammatory facts that should not have been entered into the
equation or the mix for the judges’ consideration, I think it
heightens the situation to a whole new level.

We are not talking about a drug case or even
an armed robbery case or something else. That’s why I am
trying to make the argument that this is such a unique
situation. And I just wanted the Court to consider that
point.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Hahn?

MR. HAHN: Three points. As you have indicated, we are
speaking specifically about recusal. The proper protocol
hasn’t been followed. The Court has already observed that.

Your Honor, .second, the case law is clear

that the defendant bears the burden of proof to demonstrate
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that a particular court cannot be fair and impartial. And I
have heard absolutely nothing to articulate that you cannot
be fair and impartial. So they failed their burden of
proof.

Third, your Honor I will simply rely upon
the opposition that I have already submitted dealing with
recusal. Thank you.

THE COURT: And that part of the motion is denied.

Okay. That brings us to the State’s motion,
the request to admit the testimony of the ex-wife.

Now, is this ex-wife the former wife or the
one that was -- he was married to when he was arrested.

MR. SULLIVAN: This is Melissa Botelho. She is the
ex-wife, the former wife who lives in Anchorage, Alaska.

THE COURT: This is the mother of the two --

MR. SULLIVAN: He has two children with this particular
person, yes.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SULLIVAN: And, your Honor, basically you have read
the State’s notice. You have read my opposition.

THE COURT: He is the movant on that.

MR. SULLIVAN: Okay.

THE COURT: Let him go first.

MR. HAHN: Your Honor, again I am going to primarily

31
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rely upon my reply because I believe there is a statutory
exception for this. And having said that, I stand ready to
answer any questions.

THE COURT: All right. Well, give me the statutory
exceptions that you believe qualify as to -- |

MR. HAHN: There is only one. There are five possible
exceptions that are identified. And what I have pointed out
in my motion specifically --

THE COURT: Excuse me. Did you —- there was a case
that was just decided by the United States Supreme Court
Yesterday or the day before.

MR. SULLIVAN: Crawford verses Illinois? I'm sorry, I
am thinking of something else.

THE COURT: It had to do with a confrontation clause.
They overruled Ohio v. Roberts.

MR. SULLIVAN: That is Crawford verses Illinois. We
are on the same page.

THE COURT: Crawford verses Illinois?

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Anyway, they sort of, as I
read it, narrowed the -- areas where out-of court statements
can come in.

And they didn’t specifically address the

marital testimony or communicative privilege. But,

2
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nevertheless, they are talking about hearsay statements and
the right to confront. And that.plays into this somewhat
because, if you bring that in -- but again we are at the
sentencing stage. We are not at the guilt stage. So the
rules that you point out in your Points and Authorities are
relaxed.

And I will get back to you.

Let me hear from the opposition.

MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge. Judge, it is my
understanding that the State’s sole contention is that the
statutory marital communication privilege set forth in NRS
49.295 does not apply because of 49 point -- 49.295(2) (e) (1),
which is the exception.

And it reads as follows: "Neither a husbkand
nor a wife can be examined during the marriage or afterwards
without the consent of the other as to any communication made
by one to the other during the marriage. The provisions of
subsection one do not apply to -- and here is the exception
that the State is hanging their hat on =-=- criminal
proceedings in which one spouse is charged with -- a crime
against the person or the property of the other spouse or of
a child of either or of a child in the custody or control of

either, whether the crime was committed before or during the

marriage.™
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And T don’t think that this statute -- this
exception to this statute applies at all. And I have three
main points for that. The State goes to great lengths to
talk to your Honor in its motion about strict interpretétion
of the statute.

Well, your Honor, as you can see, this
clearly is talking about a family or domestic type
situation. Just a plain reading of the statute. 1It’s.
talking about whether or not one spouse or the other spouse
had custody or control or it was a child of them. 1It’s
talking about the domestic type relationships because it
could have been a stepfather. It could have been a
stepmother. It could have been -- there are all sorts of
family and domestic relationships.

So the legislature clearly is talking about
a family or domestic type relationship when they made this
exception.

Furthermore, if the State relies on strict
interpretation of the statute -- however, yet in its footnote
it says, "Well, your Honor, disregard the last part of the
sentence, whether the crime was committed before or during
the marriage. The crime was committed after the marriage."

But they don’t want you to consider that,

Judge. So if they are relying solely on a strict

AR
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interpretation of the statute, they have to concede a plain
reading of it. 1In a strict interpretation of the statute, it
does not apply because it’s talking about a family
relationship. And the crime was committed after the
marriage.

My second peint, your Honor, is I don’t know
if your Honor is familiar with Peck verses State. 1It’s 116
Nevada 840, decided August 24, 2000.

I didn’t have a chance to basically reply to
the State’s reply, so I fiqured I could bring it up in
today’s proceedings.

But what’s interesting about Peck verses
State, the defendant in that case accosted a young female
victim at a UNR football game. The young lady was urinating
behind some bushes out there at Mackay Stadium. And the
defendant comes up behind her, grabs her around the throat,
tells her he has a knife and drags her away and then sexually
assaults her behind these bushes.

Clearly in that case the State must concede
that the defendant had custody and control over the victim as
the State is alleging in their motion today.

However, the Supreme Court decided that the
reason why the marital communication privilege did not apply

was not because the defendant had custody and control over
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the young female victim and that the exception basically
swallowed up the entire statutory privilege of marital
communication. They didn’t make that determination.

What they hung their hat on was Peck’s wife
failed to -- she waived her privilege when she testified in
the case. She never invoked it. And likewise Peck hiﬁself,
the defendant, waived his privilege to prevent his wife from
testifying by not specifically stating his objection prior to
her testimony.

They never went into this analysis --

THE COURT: What did she testify about?

MR. SULLIVAN: She testified -- basically Peck was
found in the bathroom when the cops came to their residence
and she made some statements about his whereabouts. It
really doesn’t get into more than that.

But she made some incriminating statements
against him and where he was hiding. And she lied initially
to the officers. And then she told a different story and
they called her to testify.

But the Supreme Court said, "You waived the
privilege because you both -- you both never invoked it. You
both had a privilege and you never invoked it."

They didn’t get into this whole analysis,

"Wait a minute. There is an exception. And because the

("]
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defendant had custody and control over the victim, therefore,
the privilege has been waived." They never even talked -about
that because it simply does not present itself. It’s not --

it’s not an argument that has merit.

Finally, Judge, the last point I will make,
let’s assume we follow the State’s argument to its logical
conclusion. Let’s assume that we are standing here before
you today and there is twelve pecple from this community
deciding my c¢lient’s fate.

He already entered a plea of guilty to these
counts that carry life sentences. But let’s just assume, we
go back in time and we go to trial and we are at trial and
it’s me and Mr. Hahn and we are duking it out. We are
fighting the good fight.

And Mr. Hahn decides to call Melissa
Botelho, my client’s ex-wife, in his case in chief -- or at
any time during the proceedings. Rebuttal witness,
whatever. It doesn’t matter.

So, if you take the State’s argument to its
logical conclusion and the State stands up and says, "Well,
your Honor, Mr. Botelho had custody and control of the victim
in this case and therefore he can’t exercise his statutory
marital communication privilege because of the facts of this

case," do you see the faulty logic in that argument?
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Whether somebody has custody and control,
whether the defendant has custody and control during a trial
proceeding is not a fact for your Honor to determine.

That is a question of fact for the jury.

So your Honor would therefore be thrust into
a dichotomy. How can I decide whether or not this is —-- this
exception applies because I cannot make the determination as
to whether or not he had custody and control of this victinm,
because that is one of the elements of the offense that he is
charged with and that is something for the jury to do, not
myself?

So, therefore, the State by their argument,
the exception is swallowing up the entire privilege. It
falls upon its own weight and it can’t happen, Judge. And
I’1]1 subnmit it.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Hahn, let’s get your
response to that.

Your interpretation of a criminal proceeding
in which one spouse is charged with a crime of a child -- or
against a child in the custody or control of either. You are
saying, because he was a kidnapper, therefore, he was 'in
control of a child because of her age; therefore, that’s the
exception?

MR. HAHN: That’s true.

38
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THE COURT: I have to agree with Mr. Sullivan on
that. I don‘’t think that is the -~ the intent of that
statute. TI think it has to be in a -~ familial type of
setting.

But how about the Franco case% Now, wWe are
talking about -- evidently she spoke with the police officer,
right?

MR. SULLIVAN: Correct, your Honor. Detective Carry
and Detective Herrera.

THE COURT: All right., And she told them about these
fantasies, 1Is that accurate or no?

MR. SULLIVAN: That is accurate, Judge. Well, yes, I
have the transcript and she -- that’s how the officers knew
where to even begin with these -- alleged deviant sexual
fantasies.

THE COURT: How come they can’t come in that way,
through the officer’s testimony at a sentencing hearing?

MR. SULLIVAN: That’s a very good question, your
Honor. And I have combed all the transcripts from Melissa
Botelho and from the officers and have read the officers’
reports.

And unless the State has some piece of
information that.I am not privy to, I don’t see anywhere in

there where my client tells the officers that he ever had

39
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these deviant sexual fantasies.

THE COURT: I am talking about the wife.

MR. SULLIVAN: They certainly cannot circumvent the
privilege by saying, "We talked to the wife and the wife said
this," because that would certainly viclate his confrontation
rights. We have a right to basically confront. It’s
hearsay.

THE COURT: At the gquilt phase, I agree with you. But
we are now at the sentencing phase. The rules are relaxed.

MR. SULLIVAN: Absolutely, they are relaxed. But I
don’t think they are disbanded all together. I don’t think
the legislature would allow for a scenario where you can
circumvent the marital privilege by saying, "Well, we will
just call another witness, i.e., the officer who spoke to the
wife in question, the ex-wife in question, to get out this
testimony." This privilege is all encompassing. You
cannot --

THE COURT: Didn’t they use that in the Franco case?

I mean, she talked to the police officer and he testified to
what she said.

MR. SULLIVAN: Which page are you referencing, your
Honor?

THE COURT: I didn’t bring the book.

MR. SULLIVAN: Can I have the Court’s indulgence?

40
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THE COURT: Sure.

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, if I read the case correctly,
Judge -- I'm éiting Franco verses State, which is 109 Nevada
1229 -- the Court decided that the wife couldrtestify and
they hung their hat on other reasons. They talked about
hearsay exceptions and things of that nature. But I don’t
ever remember them making a holding that, if there is a
marital communication privilege about certain material that
another witness --

THE COURT: The wife is testifying against her husband
in a criminal case. That’s what we are talking about. That
was at the guilt -- that was at the guilt phase. Okay. So
we are taking about the same thing.  There is a wife talking
to the police officer and he comes in and says what she said
to him.

MR. SULLIVAN: I don’t think that the State could be
allowed to circumvent the rule. Then that’s what everyone
would do. Well, we’ll go get a Detective to talk to the
exspouse. And then, if the exspouse talks to the Detective,
then we can throw the Detective up to the stand and that’s
how we get around the rule.

And I don’t think that’s appropriate. I
think that circumvents it. And the legislature made this

privilege for a reason.
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THE COURT: There is case law that says they can’t do
that.

MR. SULLIVAN: I disagree with the court’s
interpretation in Franco, respectfully, your Honor.

THE COURT: Sure. I understand that. But read the
facts. That’s --

MR. SULLIVAN: I have read the case aqd I have it here
today and I don’t think that’s what they are saying.

THE COURT: She testified against her husband and the
co-defendant.

MR. SULLIVAN: Whether or not she properly invoked the
privilege or whether or not he properly invoked the privilege
because there are two privileges. _

THE COURT: Right. One is testimonial and that lies
with the witness.

MR. SULLIVAN: Exactly.

THE COURT: And then the other communicative. And
that goes with the person at the trial.

MR. SULLIVAN: And I don’t think -- we are talking
about the first privilege, not the second privilege in
Franco. And I could be mistaken. I would have to give it a
thorough reading. But I think we are talking apples and

oranges. The first privilege is she wants to waive the

privilege. That’s fine. She has a right to waive that
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privilege. If my client invokes that privilege =--

THE COURT: Didn’t she testify in Franco that her
husbaﬁd said, "I think I killed a guy"?

MR. SULLIVAN: Yeah. That was -- but whether or not --
we are talking about the first privilege or the second
privilege.

THE COURT: That’s hearsay? The exception is against

penal interest of the declarant. And it’s the spouse of the

declarant.
MR. SULLIVAN: But she =-- she is -- she heard that
information firsthand. I am talking about Franco -- the

woman in Franco incurred that information firsthand from the
declarant.

In this fact scenario we have hearsay upon
hearsay, do we not? Because we have —-- yeah. Exactly. We
have hearsay upon hearsay. We have my client allegedly
making statements to Melissa Botelho, who makes statements to
Detective Herrera and Detective Carry.

THE COURT: As far as NRS 49.295, I think your
interpretation is accurate. All right. That exception does
nct apply in a kidnap case. Okay.

I agree with you.

What we are talking about here is the

argument advanced by the State that, because it'’s a
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sentencing proceeding, there is an exception to the hearsay
rule and it comes in that way.

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, then I guess ~- if your Honor
believes that Detective Herrera and Detective Carry can
testify at sentencing, certainly I can’t -- can’t make -- or
ask you to exclude them from testifying.

But, once they take that witness stand and
start testifying about other admissions my client may haye
made or other facts about the case, certainly, yeah, that’s
fine.

But once they start going down =-- if I see
them start going down the path of, "Did you talk to Melissa
Botelho? wWhat did she tell you about the client," I am going
to stand up and make that objection. I guess we will come to
that bridge when we come to it.

THE COURT: So let me see if I got this straight
again.

If a husband and wife have conversations --

MR, SULLIVAN: -- during the course of a marriage.

THE COURT: =-- during the course of a marriage.

And then the wife or the husband, either
one, tells a party outside the marriage of the contents of
that communication, are you saying that that third party is

barred from ever testifying about what that spouse said?

Ol
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MR. SULLIVAN: I think so, yes. I think --

THE COURT: So the privilege goes to a third party.
You can never waive or breach by your conduct? |

MR. SULLIVAN: Well, all I can tell you is that I am
asking you for you to exclude any testimony from Melissa
Botelho based upon the marital communication privilege.

And as far as the other witnesses in this
case that want to testify at sentencing, they have a right to
testify. It’s whether or not the State can show that this
testimony comes in, then they will -- they will have to show
as to why it’s relevant, if they have a hearsay exception or
a -- two hearsay exceptions for the double hearsay.

And I would certainly still make the
argument that it circumvents the marital privilege, because,
as your Honor -- as I pointed out, you know, if the State
gets into that murky water, that area, what are they doing?

They are now commenting on the fact -- or
they are coming dangerously close to the fact that my client
invoked the privilege to begin with. And, as we know from
the statute and the case law that I have cited, you can’t do
that. It’s impermissible. 1It’s improper. And that is
Hylton verses State, your Honor. 49.405 is what I am
referencing.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Hahn?

45
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MR. HAHN: Briefly, your Honor. The statute and the
concern that Mr. Sullivan has about -- about the trial Judge
or the lawyers commenting about -- commenting about the
marital privilege, this is the same chicken and the egg
arqument we have been arguing about circularly. The Judge is
above that.

And the Judge can make the call. And so we
are not talking about whether or not it comes in front of a
jury. The issue is can you, if perhaps you believe it would
be inappropriate, put it aside?

The legal standard is -- for purposes of
sentencing is any information that is highly improbable or
specious should not be in front of you. That’s the legal
standard.

There is no issue of a confrontation
clause. I agree wholeheartedly with the court because that
is not an issue, Hearsay routinely comes in. The issue is,
according to the standard, is there something about this
evidence that no way, no way can I consider this because this
is just too far removed?

We are not anywhere close to that because,
not only do we have the statements that have been represented
by Miss Botelho, but we also have some of those same

statements echoed by the defendant himself. So we don’t even

i
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come close to that standard. So I don’t see the problem,
Judge. |

THE COURT: Well, then let me ask you, how do you
intend to present it? You are not going to call her, are
you?

MR. HAHN: If the court finds that she should not be
called, I am not even going to go there, Judge.

THE COURT: I agree with counsel. She should not be
called. If you have another way of putting it on, that’s a
different --

MR. HAHN: I was simply going to offer that so they had
the opportunity to confront her, if they want to exercise
that. I was going to afford them that privilege.

If the court would prefer that I don’t, I
won’t. I will simply put on the officers.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SULLIVAN: And, your Honor, I would just -- I know
I am beating a dead horse. I apologize. I would simply
reference Hylton, which says it’s improper for them to make
any impermissible inference that my client invoked the
spousal privilege. I don’t know how the State is going to
get around -- they can put on the officer to reference other
things. But, once they start going down that path, "What did

you talk about with Melissa Botelho," that is an
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impermissible inference about my client being made at
sentencing about the fact that he invoked his privilege. And
I think it’s improper and I would ask this court to exclude
his statement.

THE COURT: Wait a minute. I am the one that’s
deciding the motion. I am the one that’s impacted by those
facts. How can you say that, because I am doing that -
because that’s part of my job. Therefore -- I am -- I can’t
even set that out.

MR. SULLIVAN: I understand, your Honor. What I am
trying to do is I am trying to caution the State -- and maybe
I am not doing a good job at it. I am trying to caution the
State and let them know, if they start going down this road,
I would consider it an impermissible inference on the fact --
and I would make that objection at the appropriate time.

THE COURT: So you are not objecting to the fact that
they are going to testify and say what they are going to -
say?

MR. SULLIVAN: The detectives?

THE COURT: You are saying that because of my ruling
that they'can’t call the wife now because they are calling
the police officer to offer those facts, that is an obvious
reflection by inference on the fact that he invoked his

privilege and that flies in the face of the statute that says

ag’
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the Judge can’t comment on it?

MR. SULLIVAN: And the case law that says the State as
well as the Judge can’t comment on it. And so the State is
not supposed to comment on it from the witness’s -- I can’t
prevent them from calling Detective Herrera.

THE COURT: What do you ﬁean.they comment on it?

MR. SULLIVAN: It makes the impermissible inference
that he invoked the privilege. And I think them asking
questions about what she told them, that is an inference.
And, you know, we will have to make that determination once
we get to it. Because they might not even go there, Judge.
They might not even go down that road. I don’t'know what
they are going to ask the Detective. They might ask other
things related to the transcript.

THE COURT: I suggest you talk with her and find out
what they are talking about with her so that you know what
they are talking about.

MR. SULLIVAN: You are talking about Melissa Botelho?
I know what she told the police.

THE COURT: Well, then there you go.

MR. SULLIVAN: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. That will be the order, if we
are all clear on it.

All right. And of course, counsel, you are

49
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free to object like you would in a trial as we go along. But
on the issues that were raised here --

MR. SULLIVAN: Okay. Just so I am clear, your Honor.
The State is precluded from calling Melissa Botelho at
sentencing?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SULLIVAN: Okay.

Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything else?

MR. SULLIVAN: Nothing, Judge. I think that’s --

THE COURT: When is this sentencing?

MR. SULLIVAN: April sometime, your Honor.

THE COURT: April 7th. All right. See you then.

MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge.

(At this time the foregoing proceedings were concluded.)
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STATE OF NEVADA )

}ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, JOAN MARIE DOTSON, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter for the Second Judicial District Court of the State
of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe DO HEREBY CERTIFY;

That I was present in Department No. 3 of
the above-entitled court on Thursday, March 11th, 2004 and
took verbatim stenotype notes of the proceedings and
thereafter transcribed them into typewriting as herein
appears;

That the foregoing transcript is a full,
true and correct transcription of my said stenotype notes and
is a full, true and correct record of the proceedings had and
the testimony given in the above-entitled action to the best

of my knowledge, skill and ability.

DATED: This 12th day of March, 2004,

JOA&UARIE DOTSON, CSR #102
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CASENO: CR03-2156
VS.
DEPT.NO.: 3
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
Defendants
/

RECEIPT OF GRAND JURY TRANSCRIPT

TRANSCRIPT OF GRAND JURY PROCEEDINGS RECEIVED FROM RONALD A.
LONGTON, JR., CLERK OF THE COURT.

Dated this

- RONALD A. LONGTON, JR.

G@“ﬁouﬂ
igy“ \ \\ﬁ“____‘///,,,//’

Deputy Clerk
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CASE NO. CR03-2156 STATE OF NEVADA VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO
DATE, JUDGE

OFFICERS OF

COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES-HEARING CONTINUED TQ
04/07/04 ENTRY OF JUDGMENT AND IMPQOSITION OF SENTENCE

HONORABLE Deputy District Attorney Bruce Hahn represented the State.

JEROME M. Defendant was present and represented by counsel, Deputy Public

POLAHA Defender Sean Sullivan. Probation Officer Joan Weald was also

DEPT.NO. 3 present.

C. Patterson Defense counsel addressed the Court moved that the

(Clerk) Defendant's handwritten statement not be attached to the copy of the
greaes PSI sent to the prison. GRANTED. Counsel further objected the

=987 ) State's notice to present prior bad acts and presented a letter filed

=3ag under seal. Defense called Marylou

=55z Coelho, Defendant's Mother and Defendant's sister who made

§ %EE_‘ statements behalf of the Defendant. Counsel for the State

=45¢ addressed the Court called officer Greg Herrera who was sworn and

examined. No cross examination conducted; witness excused. The
State argued in support of the PSI. Victim Jane Doe was called and
sworn and read a statement into the record. No cross examination;
witness excused. The State called the mother of Jane Doe who read
a statement into the record; questioned by the Defense and excused.
; Defendant addressed the Court on his own behalf.
COURT ORDERED: Defendant adjudged guilty and sentenced to
imprisonment in the Nevada Department of Corrections for a term of
Life with the possibility of parole after a minimum of five (5) years as
been served, with credit for one hundred ninety-seven (197) days
time served. It is further ordered that Michael Todd Botelho is guilty
of the crime of Sexual Assault on a Child, a violation of NRS
200.366, a felony, as charged in Count lIl of the Indictment, and that
he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada Department of
Corrections for a term of Life with the possibility of parole after a
minimum of twenty (20} years as been served, to be served
consecutively to the sentence imposed in Count I. it is further
ordered that Michael Todd Botelho is guilty of the crime of Sexual
Assault on a Child, a violation of NRS 200.366, a felony, as charged
in Count IV of the Indictment, and that he be punished by
imprisonment in the Nevada Department of Corrections for a term of
Life with the possibility of parole after a minimum of twenty (20) years
has been served, to be served concurrently io the sentences
imposed in Count lIl. It is further ordered that Michael Todd Botelho
is guilty of the crime of Sexual Assault on a Child, a violation of NRS
200.366, a felony, as charged in Count V of the Indictment, and that

HAEL

District Court
Washoe County

[T

CRO3-2156
STATE VS. MIC
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CASE NO. CR03-2156 STATE OF NEVADA VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO
DATE, JUDGE PAGE 2 '
OFFICERS OF

COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES-HEARING CONTINUED TO
04/07/04 ENTRY OF JUDGMENT AND IMPOSITION OF SENTENCE

HONORABLE he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada Department of

JEROME M. Corrections for a term of Life with the possibility of parole after a

POLAHA minimum of twenty (20) years as been served, to be served

DEPT. NO. 3 consecutively to the sentences imposed in Counts | and IV.

C. Patterson It is further ordered that a special sentence of Lifetime supervision

(Clerk) commence after any period of probation, or any term of imprisonment

J. Dotson or after any period of release on parole. It is further ordered that the
(Reporter) Defendant pay the statutory Twenty-five Dollar ($25.00)

administrative assessment, submit to a DNA analysis test for the
purpose of determining genetic markers and pay a testing fee of One
Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00), reimburse the Washoe County
Pubtic Defender's Office in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars
($500.00) for legal services rendered and pay restitution in the
amount of Six Hundred Thirty-two Dollars ($632.00).

Defendant remanded to the custody of the Sheriff
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RONALD A, LORBTIN. JR., CLERK
By M

CODE 1850

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
VS, Case No. CR03-2156
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, Dept. No. 3
Defendant.
/
JUDGMENT

The Defendant, having entered a plea of Guilty, and no sufficient cause being
shown by Defendant as to why judgment should not be pronounced against him, the Court
rendered judgment as follows: |

That Michael Todd Botelho is guilty of the crime of Kidnapping in the First Degree, a
violation of NRS 200.310-1 and NRS 200.320, a felony, as charged in Count | of the
Indictment, and that he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada Department of
Corrections for a term of Life with the possibility of parole after a minimum of five (5) years
as been served, with credit for one hundred ninety-seven (197) days time served.

It is further ordered that Michael Todd Botelho is guilty of the crime of Sexual
Assault on a Child, a violation of NRS 200.366, a felony, as charged in Count |ll of the
Indictment, and that he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada Department of
Corrections for a term of Life with the possibility of parole after a minimum of twenty (20)

years as been served, to be served consecutively to the sentence imposed in Count I.
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It is further ordered that Michael Todd Botelho is guilty of the crime of Sexual
Assault on a Child, a violation of NRS 200.366, a felony, as charged in Count IV of the
Indictment, and that he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada Department of
Corrections for a term of Life with the possibility of parole after a minimum of twenty (20}
years has been served, to be served concurrently to the sentences imposed in Count lIl.

It is further ordered that Michael Todd Botelho is guiity of the crime of Sexual
Assault on a Child, a violation of NRS 200.366, a feiony, as charged in Count V of the
Indictment, and that he be punished by imprisonment in the Nevada Department of
Corrections for a term of Life with the possibility of parole after a minimum of twenty (20)
years as been served, to be served consecutively to the sentences imposed in Counts |
and IV.

It is further ordered that a special sentence of Lifetime supervision commence after
any period of probation, or any term of imprisonment or after any period of release on
parole. It is further ordered that the Defendant pay the statutory Twenty-five Dollar
($25.00) administrative assessrhent, submit to a DNA analysis test for the purpose of
determining genetic markers and pay a testing fee of One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00),
reimburse the Washoe County Public Defender's Office in the amount of Five Hundred
Dollars ($500.00) for legal services rendered and pay restitution in the amount of Six
Hundred Thirty-two Dollars ($632.00).

Dated this 7th day of April, 2004.

EROME M. POLAHA
DISTRICT JUDGE
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JOAN MARIE DOTSON
CCR #102
75 CQURT STREET

RENO, NEVADA

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT CF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE CCUNTY OF WASHOE

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JERCME M. PCOLAHA, DISTRICT JUDGE

--o0o--

THE STATE QOF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
(Case No. CR(C3-2156

vs. Departmenf No. 3

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
Defendant.
)

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
SENTENCING
Wednesday, April 7th, 2004
8:30 A.M.

Reno, Nevada

Reported by: JOAN MARIE DOQTSON
NV, CA AND UT CERTIFIED, REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL REPORTER
Computer-aided Transcription

ERK
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APPEARANCES

For the Plaintiff:

For the Defendant:

THE NEVADA DEPARTMENT

QF PAROLE AND PROBATION:

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY
BY: BRUCE HAHN

Deputy District Attorney

P.,O. Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89520

CFFICE OF THE PUBLIC DEFENDER
BY: SEAN SULLIVAN

Deputy Public Defender

P.0O. Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89520

JO EWALD
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WEDNESDAY, APRIL 7TH, 2004; RENO, NEVADA
--o0o--

THE COURT: Good morning. Be seated please. This is
CR03-2156, State of Nevada verses Michael Todd Botelho. And
this is the time set for the entry of judgment and the
imposition of sentence in this matter.

Mr. Sullivan, have you received the
presentence report?

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, I have received a
presentence report. And, your Honor, I apologize. My client
did not make it on the first transport this morning. He made
it on the second transport, so he just arrived. He just sat
down before your Honor hit the bench.

And, your Honor, for the Court's knowledge,
there was some confusion as to the pages in the defendant's
attached written statement. Myself, including the Division,
were missing four pages from the statement.

Apparently on the original my client wrote
on the back pages and those copies were not provided to the
Division or myself. We just received them this morning.

Mr. Hahn was kind enough to allow me to lock at his copy.
And I would ask this court for just a ten-minute recess so I
can review the extra pages with my client.

THE CCURT: All right.
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MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge.
(At this time a brief

recess was taken.)

THE COURT: Be geated please.
We are back on the record. And,
Mr. sullivan, I have the presentence report. I have a
psychological and substance abuse eval.
And I was provided a victim impact

statement.

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes, your Hecnor. I have filed all those

documents under seal with the court. And I have provided
this morning Mr. Hahn a copy of the letters that were filed
under seal on behalf of my client.

THE CCURT: I don't have those.

MR. SULLIVAN: You do not have the letters?

THE CCURT: No.

I'm sorry. Yes, I do. All right. They

Qere filed under seal tcoc.

MR. SULLIVAN: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Yes.

MR. SULLIVAN: If it pleases the Court, your Honor,
are in receipt cf the presentence report dated January 13th,

2004.
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We have no factual corrections or additions
to make at this time. Judge, the only thing I would add for
the record concerning the P.S.I. is if you would not attach
my client's rather lengthy statement to the P.S.I. at the
conclusion of these proceedings. I do not want this
statement following him down to the prison.

Your Honor, also another housekeeping matter
that I have, my client would like to lodge another objection
on the record concerning the State's notice of intent to
introduce prior -- or other bad act evidenée at sentencing
filed on February 3rd, 2004.

And my client would ask this courﬁ to not
consider any of the information alleged by the State per NRS
49.305 and NRS 49.405 and the applicable case law set forth
in the defendant's opposition to State's motion filed on
February 13th, 2004.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge. Judge, my client --

THE COURT: Mr. Sullivan, in locking at the file, I
was correct in my first statement concerning the family
letters. Yeah. They are not there. I have a cover sheet
saying letters from the family. But there are not letters

behind it.

MR. SULLIVAN: Can I approach, your Honor?
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THE COURT: Sure. all right.
MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge.

Judge, actually we do have one factual
correction to make to the P.S.I.

My client would like to note the Social
Security number on the first page, third line down, there are
two Social Security numbers. The first one is his true and
correct social security number. And it says also used is a
different number which is only one number off from his true
and correct number.

My client has indicated he has never used
the second number and he believes it just to be a
typographical error and he would like the Court to note that.

Your Honor, we are set for sentencing today
for Michael Todd Botelho. My client is a forty-two year old
male born in Honoka, Hawaii. He has three younger sisters
and one younger brother.

Your Honor, he was -- for all intents and
purposes he was raised in a loving and caring environment.
Neither of his parents drank or abused drugs.

The only criticism he would have to say
about his upbringing is that sometimes his father could be
hypercritical.

My client himself, your Honor, has never

V3.269
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abused alcchol or drugs. He was never physicaliy or sexually
abused. He first consumed alcohol at the age of seventeen
like a lot of -- unfortunately like a lot of seventeen year
old teenagers.

But he would only consuﬁe a few beers a
month, approximately six beers per month. And he tried
cannabis at least on one occasion. So, for all intents and
purposes, your Honor, we don't believe my client has any
substance abuse or alcohol problems to speak of.

He did graduate from high school with a
degree, your Honor. And he also went on to perform one year
of college in 1980Q.

His main trade or profession is in the
construction field, and that's where he has worked ever
since. He has had a number of construction jobs and he does
qguite well. He has a very strong worth ethic, your Honor.
My client prides himself on never missing a day of work, up
until the instant offense.

He told me that he -- even if he was, you
know, very gravely ill, he would still go in to work. In
speaking of illnesses, your Honor, he does have a number of
medical complications to speak of.

He gsuffers from chronic leuccpenia. In

addition, he also sufferg from a form of Hodgkin's lymphoma.
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Right now he has a very low white blood cell count. He has
swollen lymph node glands, muscle aches and joints. And he
is deaf in his left ear.

In addition, your Honor, my client did servé
a stint in the military. He was in the Marines. And he was
given an honorable discharge in light of his medical
conditions.

Your Honor, my client, ag you can see from
Doctor Davis's report, which was filed under seal on January
26th, 2004, has no real mental health issues to speak of. He
has hever sought any mental health treatment in the past.
Doctor Davis diagnosed my client with adjustment disorder,
with a depressed mood brought about by his legal issues.

Bagically my client is certainly depressed
and concerned over his current situation. However, he is not
on any medication today. And he is not seeking any mental
health treatment at this time.

Your Honor, my client has been married in
the past: Three times to three different women. The first
time he was married was in 1981. This ended in 1985. There
were no kids as a result of this marriage.

The second time my client was married, your
Honor, was in 1990. This marriage ended in 1994 and there

were two kids from this marriage, ages ten and twelve.
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And they live with my client's ex-wife up in
Anchorage, Alaska. My client's third wife, who is present
here today, he married her in 1997; and he is still married
to her today. And they have two kids together: Two sons
ages two and four. And my client's current wife is here to
speak on my client's behalf at the conclusgion of my
arguments.

In addition, my client also has his
sister -- one of his sisters and his mdther to speak on his
behalf at the conclusion.

Your Honor, as you can see from my client's
presentence investigation report dated January 13, 2004, my
client's criminal history is nct extensive.

He was convicted c¢f a white color crime back
in 1593. This was the insurance fraud.

And he was given three years probation on
this crime and he received an honorable discharge from
prokation in 1996.

My client feelsg it's very important to let
the Court know that he pled to this and he owned up fo this
crime, but he didn't feel he was guilty of the crime at the
time.

He gct involved with his ex-wife in

something and he believes it was more to save the family

9
V3.272




' V3.273 @ | ®

'

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

relationship. And that's why he basically entered into
negotiations.

But he is in no way, shape or form today
trying to place blame on anyone else. Herwould just like the
Court to know the facts and circumstances surrounding his
gingle felony conviction for insurance fraud.

He does have a conviction, your Honor, in
1995 for a misdemeanor domestic battery.

And my client was actually the one that
alerted probation and parcle to this.

He received three weekends in jail, a fine
and community service which he completed.

As you can see, he has no other
convictions. According to my client, he also alerted the
Division of an arrest for trespassing back in 1981; but there
was no disposition.

Your Honor, I believe that my client -- and
I would submit to you in argument that my client has been
very forthcoming about the instant offense.

Angd to ;eference or support that argument, I
would reference his attached -- his letter that was
originally attached to the presentence investigation report.

I don't think everyday your Honor receives a

sixteen page letter from the defendants in court which

.19
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basically outline in great detail the acts that my client
committed and what he was thinking while he committed them
and why he committed them.

I think he struggles throughout the sixteen
pages to articulate or give this court a good reason for why
he committed this horrible act. And I think, if you read
this, upon a plain reading of the letter, he comed to the
conclusion that there was no good reason.

There is -- there is never a good
explanation for committing the crime that he did.

But he does struggle with it. He does admiF
Lo the crime in great detail. He spells it out step by step
what he did.

And he realizes what he did was wrong. It
was horrible. And he is begging for forgiveness from your
Honor, the State and, more importantly, from the victim and
her family.

Your Honor, my client would like to impress
upon the Court today that it was his intention from day one
when he was apprehended by the police to never exercise his
constitutional right to go to trial. And that was the first.

thing out of his mouth when I met with him up at the jail.

On my initial appearance on behalf of the
client he told me that he did not want to -- put this young
11
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lady through any more trauma or the horrors of a trial of
coming in and recounting the horrible acﬁs which she had
suffered.

He realized he did have the cénsti&utional
right to do so in front of twelve members. But he chose not
to do so because he had said, "Mr. Sullivan, I have already
done enough damage to that poor little girl." |

Your Honor, my client would also like you to
know that despite evidence to the contrary -- and I am
anticipating the State's argument -- he did want to turn
himself in for the crime during the investigation.

You can see the trip, this voyage that he
took with his wife where he went to Winnemucca and then he
went to the jail to show his wife where he was going to be
staying for a long time once he was apprehended and then up
through Susanville where he was finally apprehended by the
California police.

He did want to turn himself in. But wﬁat he
was trying to do was basically talk out his options. He had
talked to a few attorneys and this is referenced in the
P.S.I. attachment. And he had talked to some friends and he
had, more importantly, talked to his family members as tobhow
he should handle the situation.

But my client has indicated to me from day

12
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one when he was apprehended he wanted to turn himself in.
There is mention by the State how he tried té color his hair
or do things to change his appearance.

And my client basically says that, you know,
he is going gray and it was just -- something he wanted to do
to basically wash the gray out of his hair.

But he did want to turn himself in. He just
was scared, and he didn't know how to do it. And my client
will tell you that, if he was going to run, he would have
been on the other side of the country or Hawaii, his place of
birth. He wouldn't have been in Susanville, which is-
approximately sixty miles away, hanging out there.

He wantg you to know that -- he wanté the
Court to know that initially he did not talk to the police
about the events that had transpired on the offense date
because he -- basically his mind blocked them out.

He committed this horrible act and he
couldn't remember in great detail. His mind -- this is what
he is telling me, your Honor. Hisg mind wouldn't let him
remember what happened.

And I think it's akin to like post traumatic
stress disorder or gomething like that. But, your Honor, he
does actually admit in great detail to your Honor and to the

State and to the Division and everyone else in his written

13
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statement in great detail as to what he did to commit this
crime and I think that's important.

It just took some time for him to come to
terms with what he did.

And he -- as I have counseled him over the
numerous months in this case, things would come to him and he
would give me more and more information as to what happened.

And he knew what he did from day one was
wrong. He did a very bad thing. That's what he kept telling
me: "Mr. Sullivan, I did a very bad thing. And, when I
remember facts, I will let you know. But right now my mind,
I am drawing a blank."

And I am glad in the end he ultimately
accepted responsibility and he will accept his fate today.

Your Honor, another thing my client would
like to impress upon the Court along the same things of
accepting responsibility and doing the right thing and
ultimately coming c¢lean, so to speak, ig that -- he did let
this young lady go, which is the most important thing. He
let her go. He dropped her off. And he subjected her to no
further horrors.

And, as we turn on the t.v., you know,
nightly, all of us in this room can agree that we are

fortunate to have her here today because a lot of these cases

14
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don't end up that way.

He did let her go.

And he wants to come in and tell the Court
he is accepting responsibility for his actions.

Your Honor, another point that my client
would like to impress upon the Court is that the sexual
assault, the numerous counts of sexual assault arose out of
the same transaction and occurrence, meaning it happened
within a matter of minutes. He didn't -- kidnap this young
lady and sexually assault her over a period of days or weeks
or months. It happened within -- on the same date within a
matter of minutes.

Albeit, he feels horrible it happened at
all; but he would like the Court to know that it was a
continuous act and it was over within a matter of minutes.

And my client believes in light of this and
in light of the fact that he did not commit separate acts

that lasted hours or days or months and in light of the fact

:that he ultimately did the right thing and released this

young lady after he committed these atrocities and in light
of all the other arguments I have made this morning, my
client would like to argue against the recommendation which
has been, proffered by the Division.

And what my client feels is fair, your

15
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Honor, and what I would submit to you in argument what I
believe is fair is tc impose a sentence -- a life sentence
for my client on one of the sexual assault counts with the
eligibility -- minimum eligibility after he has served twenty
years and to run the remaining counts concurrent with that
count. And, your Honor, at this time, as I have mentioned
earlier in my arguments, I have three family members that
would like to speak on my client's behalf, if it would please
the Court.

THE COURT: All right.

State your name for the record.

DEFENDANT'S WIFE: Mary Lou BRotelho.

MR. SULLIVAN: And what would you like to tell the
Court today on behalf of Mr. Michael Botelho?

THE COURT: Did you want her sworn?

DEFENDANT'S WIFE: Excuse me?

MR. SULLIVAN: He is talking to the prosecutor.

MR. HAHN: No. Your Honor, I'll waive it. That's the
short answer.

THE CQURT: All right.

DEFENDANT'S WIFE: I have ~-lif you don't mind, I would
like to read my statement.

THE CQURT: Sure. No problem. Just so long as you

speak up so that -- we can hear.

16
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DEFENDANT'S WIFE: My husband had committed the crime

and he is sorry. We have been married for seven years and I

‘'stand by him. Like any other husband and wife, we have our

ups and downs. He is a good husband, a good father, a very
hard worker and provider.

He has never been involved in a Serioué
cffense before. And I would like to ask your good court,
your Honor, to please be lenient with him. Please give him a
chance to be a part of our sons' life as they grow up.

We have a three year old and an eight month
old baby boy just starting to enjoy and understand what it's
like to have a daddy around. They need their father to guide
them as they grow up and face life. Because of what
happened, I am losing everything we have, everything we
worked hard for the future of the children. BAnd I would like
tc request your good Lord, your Honor, to please consider my
innocent children in making your decision. Please don't
let -- please don't let them lose their dad too. Here is a
man who humbly admits his mistakes. Hé is facing the
consequences of his actions. Every fiber of his being says,

"I am scrry," and he is asking forgiveness, not only to the
State but to the family.
Please give us a chance to be a family once

again. Like normal families we have ocur hopes. We have our
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dreams to become better members of this society. And,
lastly, thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak
before you and hear my voice. Thank you so muéh, your
Honer. And may the wisdom and the knowledge of God be with
you always. Thank vyou.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, honey.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, this is my client's mother.
She would like to speak on behalf of my client. It ié my
understanding the State will waive her statement being sworn
in today.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SULLIVAN: Please state your name for the record
and spell your last name.

THE MCTHER: I am Jackie Botelho, B-C-T-E-L-H-O0. I am
the mother of the defendant.

And, your Honor, 1 have also written because
I didn't know how I was going to be able to present it. I
didn't trust myself.

My son Michael and I have shared many
experiences through the years. We have strived for
successes, laughed over silly things, cried and regaiﬁed hope
and determination through severe illnesses, fought blinding
snow storms trying to get home over the mountain on glass

smooth tires.
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We have had running dialogs on the best way

to apprcach and solve problems, from school work to

- misunderstandings, to building a house. All the years

Michael has been a protector or a support for the underdog
and unpopular people who have touched his life and was very
comfortable dcing so.

There was sibling rivalry because all of our
five children were competitive spirits in scheoel and sports.
But, if anyone from outside tried to create a problem,
Michael, as well as the others, stood up for their own.

Michael is a person. He is my son; Michael
worked with his dad through most of his school years. It
wasn't always easy because a lot of play time was missed.

But sports and other school activities kept him busy.

Michael also had a paper route for several years. And people
could rely on him thoroughly. He will help anyone who truly
needs help. And there have been times when he has given his
last food and/or his last money because someone else needed
it more.

All through high school Michael never.céused
us grief with alcohol, drugs or smoking. If he told us he
would be some where at a certain time, he was there.

He drove a semitruck for us for several

years. He was cne of the best drivers we had. Customers

19
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were very pleased.

Michael was in love with his first wife.

She did not share that love unfortunately. She was very
pregnant with someone else's child when they were married.

And she called that to his specific
attention at a later date. When the child was born, he did
not gquestion that the son was not his. He loved him and
played with him. When his second son was born he was ever so
happy. And to this day I have nevér gseen a division of love
between the two boys. TIt's been absolutely thorough.

He loved and does love those two boys
immensely. Unfortunately, their marriage did not last.

She had found her real father toward the end
of their marriage and made a determination between her family
and her new father who had left her when she was a baby.

And when she left she was aléo pregnant with
someone else's child. 8o -- things weren't going well
there.

Michael met his present wife while visiting
his grandmother in Hawaii. They wrote for a couple of
years. Then he went to the Philippines to marry her. He was
so happy. He loved her so much and still does.

They have two boys ages eighteen months and

three years. He dearly loves them. He is so very good with

20
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little children.

Michael had just finished building his own
house for his family. Somehow something just went terribly
wrong, something I cannot determine, understand. I just
don't know. I wish all of us knew.

"I am asking you to please have compassion
and mercy on Michael. I know that the young lady and her
family are suffering tremendously. We all do. Nobody goes
unscathed.

We ask that you please let him have a chance
with his children. He knows he has a legal debt to pay.
Emotionally he has paid and will all his life.

I am asking you to please consider parole
after a reasonable amount of years so he can be with his
family because they need him and love him. Thank you very
much.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, mom.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, this is the defense's final
witness.

THE SISTER: Barbara Vasquez. I am Mike's sister,
V~A-5-Q-B-Z2.

MR. SULLIVAN: What would you like to tell the Judge?

THE SISTER: I am here kind of winging it. I of course

have grown up with Mike. He has been my older brother. And

21
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I guess I am -- probably the only person on earth who knows
him inside and out in every direction possible.

I have been a witness to, helped with and
been a part of just about every aspect of his life up until
this of course.

I myself have six children ranging in age
from one yeér to twenty-one. ‘

And my children are my life. And I can't
imagine, if anything ever happened to any of them, especially
something as heinous as this.

But I will tell you that my brother is --
one of the hardest working and most loving people on this
earth.

But he doesn't always do things right. He
tries hard and scomething just happens. Wires get crossed or
something. And he never knoﬁs why. And he doesn't know how
to fix them. I know that he is greatly scrry for this. And
it's almost impossible to put down on paper what happened,
especially when you don't really know why yourself,

Regardless of how people feel duriﬁg their
life, whatever outside influences do to affect them and how
they act and react and the decisions that they make, nobody
is perfect. And he has made mistakes.

In this case -- he -- he had just gotten

22
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his -- his ultimate goal. He had his family. He had his

babies. And he had just finished his house. His life was --
great. There is absolutely no excuse and no explanation for
why this happened. |

But it did.

And -- all I can say about that is he is not
a bad guy. He is not a danger to society. He is more of a
danger to himgelf. And I -- I beg the Court to consider the
fact that he isn't a bad person and that he does have some
redeeming qualities. And he has a family that loves him and
scme babies that need him.

And he did a horrible thing and he dearly
serves to be punished. All I ask is that you consiaer
something fair and reasonable in light of the horribleness
that does happen in this world. This is a horrible crime.
But he needs to be -- he needs to be punished justly and
fairly and in accordance with what he did do. Thank yoﬁ.

THE COURT: Thank vou.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank ycu, Barbara.

MRE. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Judge. We haverno further
evidence or withesses to present.

THE COURT: All right. The law affords your client an
opportunity to address the Court. You may do that at this

time.

oW
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THE DEFENDANT: Your Honcr, first off I would like to
apologize to the victim and her family. I have no excuse for
what I did. I'm sorxrry that I hurt her and her family. I
nave hurt a whole lot of people by what I have done, myself
included. I ruiped a lot of liveg and I have had a lot of
time to think about it already and it makes me -- it makes me
sick to my stomach.

I can never take back what I have done. And
I am going to have to live with it for the rest of my life.

But all I can do is ask for the victim and her parents and

her extended family's sympathy -- excuse me, forgiveness as
my -- I ask my family to forgive me. And I have to forgive
myself.

I realize I have done scmething wrong. And
I had to plead guilty to this. I didn't want to put anyone
through any more than what's already taken place. I have to
be able to live with myself too.

And I never exXpected to get ocut of jail on
probation. I never expected to stay in jail for five to ten
years. I knew I was going to be in jail for a while. I
accept that. I know I deserve that. But all I ask is that
you give me an opportunity to be -- with my family one of
these days so that I can be there when they are older. And

Please forgive me for I am sorry from the bottom of my heart

' 24
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for -- to everybody that I have hurt, for all the trouble
that -I have caused. And I am sorry.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Hahn.

MR. HAHN: Your Honor, the way I would like to proceed
this morning is I have one witness who will be presenting
some evidence. 2And I will present an argument to the court.
And lastly, as the Court has recognized under statute, the
victim and the victim's mother would like to present a
statement.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. HAHN: The State would call Greg Herrera.

-o0o-
GREZ HERRERA
produced as a witness on behalf of
the State, being first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HAHN:
Q Sir, could you tell us your name and spell
your last name please?

A Greg Herrera, H-E-R-R-E-R-A.

25
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Q How are you employed, sir?
A I am a detective with the Washoe County
sheriff office.

Q For how many years have you been a sworn

peace officer?

A Approximately ten years.

Q You know why you are here; is that true?

A Yes, I do.

Q Detective Herrera, I would like to take you

to on or about August 7, 2003 in connection with an
investigation with the suspect that was ultimately identified
as Michael Botelho. You are familiar with that; is that
true?

A Yes, sir, I am.

Q With regard to specifically the victim who
was presented to you, I would like to first address several
issues involving her.

Was she known in this matter to have some
physical injuries?

A Yes, sir, she was.

Q Could you reccount those injuries for the
Court please?

A Yes, sir. The victim had a few injuries.

She was -- she complained of soreness in her shoulders, her

26
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back, her stomach where she stated she had been punched. She
was also sore from where she was duct taped around her eyes
and wrists. And subsequently an examination for the sexual
assault was conducted and there were also some injuries in
her vaginal area as well.

Q Could you briefly summarize for our record
today what those injuries were to not only to the vaginal
vault but the vestibule as well?

A Those injuries included abrasions on the
fourchette. There was bleeding. There was blood found in
the vaginal vault. There were lacerations and bruising
located inside the wvaginal vault as well.

Q With regard to ultimately attempting to
identify a suspect in this case, how was the suspect
identified?

A The victim's mother was able to capture a
cell phone number off their caller I.D.

Utilizing that number, we were able to track
down a name and with that we were -- able to track down --
eventually track down the suspect.

Q Now, had you neot had -- had not the victim's
mother had a caller I.D., would that have made detection
substantially more difficult?

A Absolutely.

Ors
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Q Now, with regard to the phone number that it

came back to, did it come back to his phone number?

iy No, sgir, it did not.
Q Whose number was it?
iy It came back to the defendant's wife, Mary

Lou Botelho.
Q Now, with regard to the apprehension of the

suspect, where was he apprehended?

A He was apprehended in Susanville,
California.

Q And how was it that he was even located
there?

A By chance we got a call from a secret

witness tip. We had placed the defendant's identification
and picture over local news media. A citizen, an alert
citizen, in Susanville gaw the news cast and saw
Mr. Botelhc's vehicle. And then Mr. Botelho had a local tail
in the Susanville area.

Q Now just to clear up, when you say
Mr. Botelho's wvehicle, was this the same vehicle that was
used in the abduction of the victim?

A Yes, it was.

Q Now, whose vehicle -- who typically drove

that vehicle?

28
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A Mr. Botelho's wife, Mary Lou Botelho.

Q Was that a vehicle that he would commonly
have driven?

A Almest never, according to him.

Q Now, with regard to the appréhension of the
suspect who was at this point in time identified as
Mr. Botelho, did you as an investigator observe any strange
behavior that would suggest that he was attempting to avoid
detection?

A Yes, Mr. Botelho had noticeably changed his
appearance as well as he had avoided us for several weeks
after learning that he was under investigation.

Q Now, how did he try to change his
appearance? Specifically what was it, detective?-

A He had bleached his hair. His hair was
noticeably longer. He normally keeps his hair short, as it
is today. His hair was longer. It was bleached. And he had
an a full beard at the time he was arrested.

Q Had he ever -- when -- did you confront him
with this concern that you had?

A Yeg, sir, I did.

Q What was his representation.to you at this
time as to why his appearance may have been changed?

A He stated the fact that his appearance

- 29
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changed was merely coincidental and he had been planning to
do it anyway. It was something that he had always been
wanting to do because of the graying in his hair.

Q Now, with regard to -- you are familiar with
the term FIS?

A Yeg.

Q What does that refer to?

piy That's our forensic unit, Washoe County
crime lab.

Q Again when Mr. Botelho was apprehended did

FIS process Mr. Botelho's wife's vehicle?

A Yes, sir, they did.

Q And was that the wvehicle that was used in
the abduction ¢f the victim?

A Yegs, gir, it was.

Q What unusual fact did they discover about
the vehicle?

A They stated the vehicle had obviocusly been
cleaned up. Specifically in the back seat of the wvehicle,
they noticed that it had been vacuumed and wiped down.

Q Now, you heard Mrs. Botelho testify in this
matter, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you have conversations with her in

30
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connection with your investigation?

A Several.
Q Was she truthful in her representations?
A No, sir, she was not.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, I am going to actually
object. I am neot sure which Mrs. Botelho he is talking
about.

MR. HAHN: I'm sorry. The wife.

THE COURT: The present wife?

MR, HAHN: The present wife of Mr. Botelho.

THE‘WITNESS: Mary Lou.

BY MR. HAHN:

Q Yes, sir. Was she truthful in her
representations to you?

A No, gir, she was nct.

Q What misstatements did she make to you in
connection with your investigation?

A She told me that she -- several times that
she had not been in any contact with her husband whatsoever.

And later we found out that that was not accurate.

Q In fact he was actually with her at the time

he was apprehended, true?
A That's correct.

0 Along with her children?

Lo
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A Yes, sir.

Q When you interviewed Mr. Botelho, did he
make some representations to you that concerned you, that
this incident that happened here involwving the victim, this
was not -- a one-time thing; that there had been some type of
brewing fixation?

A I had asked him if he had had fantasies and
he admitted that he had fantasies but couldn't recall what
they were about, those fantasies.

Q So he simply didn't articulate them to you
in any specific detail?z

A No, he did not.

Q2 And generally, what was the nature of these
fantasies that he had represented to you?

A He stated that he had fantasies about being
with gomebody other than his wife.

Q Okay. Now when you say being with, what was
the context?

A Having sex.

Q Okay. Now, ultimately did you follow up
later on those representations that he made to you and
receive some information concerning those fantasies from
another source?

A Yeg, sir, I did.
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MR. SULLIVAN: Objection. Your Honor. I think the

State is actually -- the next guestion out of the State's
mouth is going to ke, "Who did you follow up with -- whom did
you follow up with?" And I believe it's going to reference

my client's ex-wife Mrs. Melissa Botelho. And I would make
my objection noted‘on the record.

THE COURT: All right. And this is the subject -- or
this was the subject of the hearing prior to the sentencing
and I made my ruling so we'll proceed.

BY MR. HAHN:

Q What representations -- first of all, who
was this individual?

yay Melissa Botelho.

Q And who did she represent herself to be in

relationship to the defendant Michael Botelho?

pa Michael Botelho's ex-wife.

Q And would this be his first wife or his
second wife, if you recall?

A I don't recall that specifically. I just
remember she was a previous wife and she stated that they
were married in the early '90s.

Q What representations, if any, did she make
concerning his statements or representations to you that this

had been something brewing, that there was a fixation

33
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involved?

A She had contacted me by phone when she
learned of the investigation and stated that she was not
surprised that this had happened at all.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, I cbject. Again, I
apologize. I make the same objection. I reference Crawford
verses Washington, which I don't have the Supreme Court cite;
but I have 200 Westlaw 401, 330 301 decided March 8, 2004.

Your Honor, the Court specifically held
out-of-court statements by a witness that are testimonial in
nature and included police interviews are barred under the
confrontation clause unless a witnessg is unavailable and the
defendant had prior opportunity to cross examine this witness
regardless of whether the statements are deemed reliable by
the Court.

Second, your Honor, the Court held
admissions of the defendant's wife concerning out-of-court
statements to police officers regarding the facts of the
incident violated the confrontation laws. And I am sure your
Honor is familiar with this case. The facts of the case in
Crawford is that the defendant was charged with an assault

and attempted murder. The defendant c¢laims self-defense at

-trial. The defendant's wife did not testify due to a

Washington marital privilege statute which bars one spouse

4
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from testifying without the other spouse's consent.

THE COURT: That's what you raised --

MR. SULLIVAN: Exactly, your Honer, similar to what I
raised in the motion hearing.

THE COURT: And that was granted.

MR. SULLIVAN: Exactly. And I think the State is
trying to circumvent Crawford and also clrcumvent the marital
communication statute which has been codified by the NRS by
getting into what Melissa BRotelho, my client's ex-wife, said
to this detective.

THE CQURT: Well, wasn't Crawford a situation where
they were in the guilt phase? And the confrontation clause
became paramount because of that? Whereas here the argument
was we are not in the quilt phase. We are in the sentencing
phase. And the Court is allowed to have different sources of
information. |

MR, SULLIVAN: I don't think --

THE COQURT: You had knowledge of it. You had the
opportunity to -- confront it, to refute it, if you can.

MR. SULLIVAN: If I understand --

THE COURT: There is a different standard, and
Crawford did not address the sentencing aspect of the case.

MR. SULLIVAN: That's correct, your Honor. <Crawford

did not carve out an exception for the guilt phase or the

35
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sentencing phase. But I would submit to the court the
argument that Crawford dcoesn't apply right now. Crawford
never said that it doesn't apply to the sentencing phase. It
just never delineated that fact.

Your Honor is correct and I would argue that
under Nevada law and US Supreme Court law, which I have
cited, that it does apply at these proceedings because
basically it puts my client in a difficult position, as the
Court noted in Crawford in the fcocotnote -- footnote one, 1
believe.

It puts him in the difficult Hobkins choice
decision by forcing him to choose between the marital
privilege or confronting his ex-wife at sentencing and having
a chance to cross examine her.

He can't de that now, =so that is what is
being thrusted upon my client. It is either he invoke the
privilege, which is what he decided to do through the motion
hearings that we had, or we have Melissa Botelho come and
take the stand and we get a chance to cross examine her.

And I don't think the Court would wvoice that
upon my client at this time. So I would just lay my
cbjection for the record to any testimony concerning Melissa
Botelho through this witness.

THE COURT: All right.
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You may continue.

MR. HAHN: Your Honor, briefly, before I continue,
before the Court makes a ruling from the bench, I am
disappointed. Mr. Sullivan is a fine lawyer and he has made
a very adequate record on this issue already.

This Crawford verses Washington, now this is
being dumped on me to deal with in a manner that I am not
prepared to. 8o procedurally, your Honor, it has never been
raised. On the merits, Judge, I offered to bring her. I
offered to the court and to the defense to have their
opportunity --

THE COURT: I am not concerned about that, Mr. Hahn.
I believe in the argument -- I came across Crawford before Qe
had the argument. 1 think I mentioned it in the transcript.

MR. SULLIVAN: You did, Judge.

THE COURT: So I was aware of it and it was just a
fresh case two days prior or something like that. It was
just decided in March.

MR. SULLIVAN: It was March 8th, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HAHN: Very well, your Honor,

THE COURT: So --

MR. HAHN: I have nothing.

THE COURT: I made my ruling. Continue.

L
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BY MR. HAHN:

Q Detective Herrera, with regard to her
representations concerning this fixation, what specifically
did she relate to you?

A She stated that Michael Botelho had been
having these -- had been having fantasies ever since they
were married, during the early '90s.

0 And specifically what -- in as best detail
ags you can recall, what did she represent these fantasies
were composed of?

A She talked about fantasies -- his fantasies
of kidnapping a young girl and having sex with the young

girl, including disfigurement, torture and to hold the young

girl for -- anything he wanted to do.

Q Now, these representations that she made to
you, were they -- was this in a phone conversation? Was it
documented? How did you preserve -- in other words, I want

to know how sharp your memory is about this.

A She originally contacted me. But later on I
believe it was -- early January, I believe, I had a taped
interview with her over the phone with her consent.

Q And had that tape been in fact transcribed,
that conversation?

A Yes, it did.

Ouw
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Q And you reviewed that prior to coming and

testifying today?

A Yes, I did.
Q Judge, I have no other guestions of the
witness. I would invite Mr. Sullivan to inguire.

* CROSS EXAMINATION *
BY MR. SULLIVAN:
Q Detective, concerning -- I just have a few
guestions.

Concerning the injuries that you have
already discussed pursuant to Mr. Hahn's questioning, were
you present when the victim in this case was examined by the
SART team or by medical professicnals?

A No, sir, I was not.

Q So you have no first-hand knowledge of the
injuries in question, correct?

A Correct.

o You only saw them from documents and
photographs; is that accurate?

A And speaking with the persons who performed-
the examinatiomn.

Q S0 gecondhand knowledge basically is what

you have?
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A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, concerning the fact that my
client was apprehended in Susanville, California, vyou and
Detective Carry were actually present when my client was

apprehended in California, correct?

A No, sir. That's not correct.

) You were there, correct?

A When he was apprehended, no, sir.

Q Who exactly was there when he was
apprehended?

A It was a police officer from the Susanville

Police Department.

Q When did you finally come into contact with
my client?

A Detective Carry and I, I believe, came into

contact with him approximately a couple hours after he was

apprehended.

Q Okay. A couple hours after he was
apprehended?

A Yes, sir.

Q Where?

A At the Lassen County detention facility.

Q In California?

A Yes, eir.
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Q Okay. And, to your knowledge, you spoke to
the officers that actually apprehended my client, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you have reviewed those reports in
making your investigation in this case?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. And, to your knowledge, my client was
completely cooperative when he was apprehended by the

California authorities, correct?

A They stated he was cooperative.

Q He never put up a fight?

A No, sir.

Q He never tried to run?

A No, sir.

Q He never pulled a weapon?

A No, sir, he did not.

Q | He went along willingly with the
authorities?

A Yes, sir,

Q As a matter of fact, he put his hands in the

air, dropped his bag and said, "I am ready to go." Isn't that
accurate?
A I don't recall that part, sir.

Q Okay. And when did you actually first speak
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with my client, about how long after he was apprehended?
A I believe it was approximately a couple
hours after he was apprehended. It was driving time from

Renc to the detention facility there in Susanville.

Q Were you with Detective Carry at this time?
iy Yes, sir, I was.
Q Was there any other detectives with you at

this time?

A No, there was not.

Q Were you guys in a marked patrel car or an
undercover car?

A We were in my unmarked detective vehicle.

Q Okay. And was my client handcuffed and
sitting in the back seat?

A No, sir. He was already -- he had already
been booked in the Lassen County detention facility.

Q So he was -- seated in civilian clothes in

the back seat of the car, no handcuffsg?

A He was inside the jail.

Q I apologize. You didn't transport him back?
a No, sir, I did not.

Q Who did transport him back?

A I believe the Susanville Police Department

did.
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Q Okay. When you spoke with my client in

California, did you first read him his Miranda rights?

yiy Yes, sir, I did.

Q And he chose to waive his rights and speak
with you?

A That's correct.

Q And it's true that he was having trouble

remembering the facts of this case initially, correct?

A According to him, yes.

Q And he was trying to remember things, but he
was just having a hard time. Isn't that accurate?

A According to him, that's correct.

Q But -- you have been a deteﬁtive for quite a
long time; isn't that true?

A For five years, yes.

0 And you are familiar -- I mean, I am sure
you have interviewed a lot of suspects concerning a lot of

heinous crimes?

A Yes, sir.
Q It's true that my client wasn't playing
games with you, correct, giving you -- knowingly giving you

false and misleading information?
A I wouldn't say that's correct. I believe

that he was -- choosing not to remember. That was my belief.
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1 Q Okay. But he wasn't saying his wife's car
2 was purple rather than it being red or he wasn't giving you a
3 different make of the vehicle and trying to actively mislead
4 you in the investigation?

5 A That 's éorrect.

6 Q Okay. So at least he was attempting to give
7 you some facts?

8 A Yeg, sir.

9 Q To aid you in the investigation?

10 A Yes, sir.

11 Q And he in fact did give you scme facts. I
12 am not saying all the facts you wanted. T am just saying

13 some facts to aid you in the investigation?

14 A Yeg, sir, he did.

15 Q Thank you. Now, concerning his appearance,
16 you had never laid eyes on my client prior to the time that
17 you went and saw him in the Lassen County jail, correct?

18 A Just pictures that I have seen.

19 Q Was this a Department of Motor Vehicles

20 picture?

21 A Yes, and a previous bocking photo.

22 Q QOkay. And the previous bocking photo and
23 the Department of Motor Vehicle photo, those two pictures

24 looked pretty different, correct?
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A Yes. As far as his weight, yes.

Q His weight had fluctuated and his hair might
have been either shorter or longer, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And maybe a few more wrinkles around the
eyes where some years had passed, correct?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q And you have already testified that you
hadn't laid eyes on him physically prior to interviewing him
at the Lassen County jail?

A Yes, sir.

Q So you can't really testify as to what he
looked like without having known him in person prior to fhe
offense date, correct?

A | That's correct.

Q And you can't really accurately testify as
to how his appearance had changed, correct?

A That 's not correct. I had shown a picture
to his wife Mary Lou and she had stated that that's pretty
much how he looked. 8She said his hair was a little bit
longer.

Q Okay. Wéll, what I am asking you is that
you have no personal knowledge of how his appearance had

changed?
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A That 's correct.
Q You had to rely on the secondhand

information of other persons, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And by looking at photographs?

A Yeg, sir,

Q Now, you testified pursuant to Mr. Hahn's

questioning that FIS procesgssed my client's wife's vehicle,
correct?

A That's correct.

Q And pursuant to the processing, FIS informed
you throughout the investigation that the vehicle in question
had been cleaned recently. 1Is that an accurate statement?

A That was their opinion, correct.

Q But that is an opinion. What I am driving
at is you don't know when that vehicle was cleaned, do you?

A That's not correct. I was later informed by
Mr. Botelho himself that he had cleaned the vehicle.

Q Okay. Did he tell you when he cleaned the
vehicle?

A He stated that it was after -- either the
night that he was informed he was under investigation or thé
next day. I don't recall which one specifiéally.

Q Do you recall whether or not my client said
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1 it was just routine maintenance, é routine cleaning on the
2 vehicle or whether it was cleaning the vehicle to cover up a
3 crime?
4 A It was cleaning the vehicle to cover up a
5 crime.
6 0 He actually used the words, "I cleaned the
7 vehicle to cover up a crime"?
8 A He didn't state those words, but he stated
g he realized he had done something horrible and he didn't know
10 what it was so he cleaned out his wvehicle.
11 Q So concerning -- this is my last segment,
12 detective. Thank you for bearing with me today. This is my
13 last segment that I want to get into. Concerning the alleged
14 fantasies that you testified about that you heard through
15 Melissa Botelho, my client's ex-wife?
16 A Yes.
17 Q Who exactly interviewed Melissa Botelho?
18 A I did, sir.
19 Q And was Detective Carry there as well?
20 A I don't believe he was.
21 Q Was this a taped interview?
22 A Yes, s8ir, it was.
23 Q And I have a transcript of her original
24 interview dated January 8, 2004, stating statement given by
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Melissa Botelho. 1Is that when the interview was given?

A Can you repeat the date?

O January 8, 2004.

A Yes, szir.

Q You got the date wrong earlier?

A I think I said early January.

Q And it says statement taken by Detective

Greg Herrera. And it was telephonic, correct?

A Yes, sir, it was.
Q Ckay. Now, in the -- you have testified
that -- Melissa Botelho told yocu my client had these alleged

deviant sexual fantasies where he wanted to dismember and

maybe dispose of a young female. ' Is that your tegtimony

today?

A I testified to dismembering.

Q Dismembering. What did you take that to
mean?

A Cutting off limbs or disfiguring.

Q Okay. Have you reviewed the transcript from

Melissa Botelho from your interview?

A Yes, sir.

Q Prior to today's proceedings?

A Yes, I did.

Q Does it say anywhere in that transcript what
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you just testified to?

A Not in that transcript. But I believe I
testified there was also a previous phone call that I had
with Melissa Botelho when I was first notified of these
fantasies.

Q There was a previous phone call. What date
was that, sir?

A That was back in September, I believe.

Q Did you make -- was there a statement or
transcript provided to the District Attorney's Office
concerning this phone call?

A I didn't do a taped interview, sir,.no.

Q So this is the only transcript that we are
working from, just so I am clear, January 8, 20047

A Yes. I didn't do a formal interview at- that
time. I just received the information and -- relayed it to
the District Attorney and moved omn.

Q Let me ask you this, detective. Don't you
think that the earlier telephonic communication with Melissa
Botelho when she mentions the word dismember is important
enough to put down on a transcript or a taped recording?

A At the time, sir, I was more interested in
apprehending Mr. Botelho than I was sitting down and doing

that formal interview at that time.

—
Now
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Q But that doesn't answer my question. My
Jquesgtion is --

A No.

Q -- do you feel that that testimony or that
piece of information that Melissa Botelho gave you is not
significant -- significant encugh to put down in a transcript
or written statement, have her provide a written statement to
that effect?

A She was in Anchorage, Alaska. I couldn't
have the -- I couldn't have her easily and quickly do a
written statement. I just did it when -- the first chance I
had.

Q Ckay. But you would agree you could have
provided her -- mailed her a written statement to fill out

and then provide it back to you, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q But you chose not to do so?

A Right. I didn't do so, correct.

Q Okay. 8o the onlyltestimony transcript that
you have -- that we have from Melissa Botelho is on January

8, 2004, correct?
A Yes.
0 Wherein she says, "It was -- Michael's key

fantasy to kidnap a young girl, twelve, thirteen years old,

-
Wo
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find someplace to keep her and basically just have his way
with her," correct?

A Correct.

Q And she never mentions dismember in the
second telephonic interview?

A That's correct.

Q When was this report that you just testified
about, this report that you provided to the District
Attorney's Office, what was the date on that report
concerning Melissa Botelho's first telephonic interview?

What was the date on that?

A I don't recall. I would have to see the
report and see the date.

MR. SULLIVAN: Court's indulgence, your Honor.

Q Detective, just so I am clear, my client
never admitted to you or Detecti%e Carry during the course ﬁf
the investigation that he had deviant -- these alleged

deviant sexual fantasies, correct?

A Correct.
Q As a matter of fact, the fantasies that he
said he might have had were just normal -- normal type

fantasies of having sex with another female other than his
wife?

A We didn't -- he said he couldn't remember
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what the fantasies actually were.

] And then after he said he couldn't remember
any fantasies; isn't that true?

A I don't believe so. I think he admitted
that he had fantasies; but he couldn't recall the content, if
I remember correctly.

Q But didn't he say, "I don't know. I don't
know, " when you were pressing him during the course of the
investigation? "I can't remember"?

A I believe he said, "I can't remember."

Q Thank you, Judge. I have nothing further.

THE CQURT: All right.

MR, HAHN: I waive. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. You may step down.

MR. HAHNE Your Honor, that's the State's evidentiary
presentation,.

THE CQURT: All right.

MR. HAHN: Your Honor, with regard to a couple of
comments that I want to make clear to the court that I don't
Know are adequately addressed in the presentence
investigation report, I want to offer a couple of thoughts
concerning Mr. Botelho, a couple of thoughts concerning the
acts involved here and then a couple of thoughts concerning

the victim.
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Your Honor, I agree with Mr. Sullivan about
one thing; that there were some atrocities committed. But I
think the Court has seen through its years of experience that
atrocities are committed many times on impulse or they simply
occur very, very -quickly and they occur by people who have
had horrific life experiences, people who were whacked-cut on
dope or they are intoxicated or they have been horribly
abused themselves or there is something which the
psychologists and the legal community and the forensic
community can say, "Okay, well, at least there is some type
of understanding. There is some type of explanation to this
behavior," so we can make a judgment as to whether or not a
person would ever be a risk to someone else again.

And what I am seeing in the defense's
presentation and what I have examined is is that Mr. Botelho
has none of those. This is a man who had a good background.

This is a man who was treated properly as a
child. |

This is a man who has not abused drugs, who
has not abused alcohol. This is a man who was in the Corp
and should have learned something about honor and sacrifice.

It doesn't exist here, Judge. And that's
what troubles me so much as a prosecutor.

Because all of the commcn excuses that you
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and I see every week, he doesn't have any.

And I believe that's what represents this
man to be such a significant threat. |

What we do know is that, despite all of
these good things that his parents did for him, he is a
convicted felon before he ever hits this courtroom because of
false representations: The insurance fraud. We do know that
he has had a series of failed relationships, intimate
relationships.

Why exactly, we don't know.

But we do know that there is some stability
issues that this man has.

And when I hear his family and friends‘come
and present these letters and present these arguments, I
appreciate the pain they are going through, Judge. But this
isn't about them.

Because, frankly, they are victims too.
This is not a goocd man. This is a selfish man.

He is selfish to the core and he simply
injured other people in getting his own selfish way:

This man has young children and he is
engaging in anything remotely considerate with this type of
behavior.

He igs selfish.

4
14
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This is not a good man.

Love doesn't demand its own way.

Those are my thoughts on Mr. Botelho.

As to the c¢rimesg involved in this case,
Judge, again, I agree that an atrocity has occurred. But
those things sometimes happen on impulse. The amount of
planning that went into this troubles me.

This man did not use his own car. He used
hisg wife's car with the baby blinds and the dark tinted
windows. He brought duct tape. He cleansed the car inside
and out because he didn't want to get caught. He didn't even
use his own cell phone. He changes his appearance.

Judge, this is not just planning. But thié
was an intelligent, concealed cover-up. And of course that
makes sense. This man has a year of college behind him. He
is not a dummy.

Those are the thoughts that I have on the
crime. And when -- again when I hear about he is a hard
worker, well, that's nice. I appreciate that. And he is
okay with his kids. I can appreciate that too.

But this is a man who sliugged a girl who
doesn't even weigh ninety pounds scaking wet in the stomach
to gain her compliance. This is a man who threatened her

with harm if she ever told anybody.
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1 And yet when I read his statements I am
2 wondering if I am looking at the right case because I am
3 hearing how, "After I get off of her I start to cry and say
4 I'm sorry, I'm sorry and she tries to calm me down and she
5 tries to tell me it's okay. 2And I am really scared and I am
6 so freaked out. I am very sorry and I didn't remember doing
7 anything wrong and the cops were trying to make me feel
8 guilty and I just -- I can only remember just doing a few
9 things."
10 Judge, this is a man who is minimizing.
11 He came in and he admitted responsibility,
12 and for that he should receive some credit. I am okay with
13 that. But this is a man whe will not go cne step further.
14 Give -credit where credit is due.
15 Judge, my last group of comments is
16 concerning the victim in this case. judge, she was fourteen
17 years old.
18 | This was her first baby-sitting job.r
19 Her mom and her had responded to an ad that
20 this man had placed for a baby-sitter.
21 And of course everything looked right. It
22 was a decent looking car. And, of course, there is baby
23 seats in the back. This girl did everything that she knew in
24 her fourteen years to be smart.
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1 And Detective Herrera would have indicated
2 to you that when the defendant was talking tec them, the one
3 thing he remembered when -- in this -- in this haze where he
4 can't remember anything in detail -- one of the things that
5 thisg man did remember is when he saw the young girl he saw

6 her smile. He saw her smile.

7 And the reason that that's significant,

8 Judge, is that tells you that she trusted this man.

9 Those are my comments concerning her.

10 Judge, with regard to the Division's

11 recommendations, there iz some additional restitution that
12 the court needs to be familiar with. It's another two

13 hundred sixty-nine dollars to the victim., And that's been
14 documented and I'll invite the Court to inguire of the

15 Divieion. The fines and fees loock appropriate. I agree that
16 the court should put the defendant on lifetime supervisicn
17 with the standard fines and fees.

18 I also agree with the Division that the life
13 terms are in fact appropriate in this case. It's the right
20 thing, Judge. And I alsc agree with the Division that the
21 maximum, not just the maximum terms, but the fact that the
22 sentences should in fact run consecutive is the right thing
23 to do in this case.

24 There is absclutely no explanation for this
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man's behavior. And that's the most troubling thing that I
have to address to you. 8o having said that, Judge, I will
rest and invite any questions from the court. If the court
has none, I would like to then have the Court hear from the
vietim and her mother in a sworn statement.

THE COURT: All right. Here, let me give you my
thoughts before we proceed any further.

I see the recommendation. And I can fully
appreciate the setting in motion the -- yes, setting into
motion the chain of events that caused this.

I guess the bottom line question that I have
is the recommendation is for the maximum.

MR. HAHN: That's correct.

THE COURT: The minimum is five to twenty, the maximum
is sixty-five to life. Okay. We are at the maximum. Now,
here is my concern.

The only saving factor that I see in this
case was the fact that she was returned alive. Because, as
you indicated, almost every case that we see it turns out
otherwise.

My concern in that regard iz, if yoﬁ face
the maximum for having done the acts and returning the victim
alive, what is to prevent killing the next victim because tﬁe

punishment is geing to be the same? And that is where I am
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stuck.

This is not a minimum punishment case. This
is a heavy punishment case. But the only concern, as I have
expressed is -- what stops the next person, once that is set
in motion and the thought occurs kill the victim, kill the
witnesses, because I have already crossed the line and, once
crossed, there is no turning back. Is that a légitimate
concern or -- that's the concern I have.

ANy response?

MR. HAHN: Your Honor, with regard to -- -- 1
appreciate what the court is saying. Because the Court is
saying theoretically, if offenders would hear about this,
then why not just go ahead and cut up and kill the victim
like they have been thinking about for years?

Judge, I don't know. I don't have an
intelligent answer in terms of presenting to the potential
offender community out there a mathematical formula and a
carrot-stick type of approach to saying, at least if you --
if you come forward and you turn yourself in or if you don't
kill the victim, you know, we want to offer you something.

I can't speak to that, Judge. I just --
it's really outside my realm. I appreciate the weight on
your shoulders. But what I do know about this man -- what I

do know is this was not an impulse act. And we are thankful
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that she is alive.
THE COURT: I agree. All right.
Go ahead.
MR. HAHN: The $tate will ask -- will invite the Court
to ingquire of Jane Doe, the wvictim.
-000-
JANE DOE
being first duly sworn,

wags examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. HAHN: May I have just a moment with her?
THE COURT: Sure.
BY MR. HAHN:
Q Ma'am, you were the Jane Doe that's listed

in the information on file; is that true?

A Yes.

Q Could you tell me how old you are?

A I am fifteen now.

Q And you know why you are here; is that true?
A Yes.

Q What grade are you in?

A Sth.

Na
wo
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Q And is there some informaticn that you would

like to relate to Judge Polaha?

A Yes.

Q Did you prepare a statement?
A Yeah.

Q Would you like to read it?
A Yeah.

Q If you would please.

THE COURT: If you could, could you get closer to the
microphone so that your voice is heard?

.THE VICTIM: Okay. You know, my name is Jane Doe. On
August 7th, 2003 I thought I was going to go for a baby
sitting job for Kevin. That's what he said his name was.

Instead Mike Botelho took me up in the hills
and raped me. That day changed my family's life and my life
forever. I sat there not knowing if I was going to live or
die.

I kept telling myself over and over again,

"This is all a horrible dream. You will soon wake up and be
home again." I think that is how I got through this
norrifying rape. I would like to tell you what my life has
been like for the past eight months and how Mike Botelho's
crime has affected me.

Being raped has turned my whole world
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upside-down in every horrible possible way. I have been
through four internal pelvic exams -- which is pretty unusual
and scary for somebody my age, who hasn't even started their
périod yet -- thirteen separate blood tests, two x-rays and
two ultra sounds, which have to be repeated in a couple of
years because of my size.

We don't really know if I will ever be able
to have kids of my own because of the damage that has been
done. And I have just received the paperwork for my fourth
HIV test. |

I have seven more of those to go over in the
next four-and-a-half years. All of those proceedings that I
have gone through have been painful, scary and embarrassing.

I have been on antidepressants and
medication to sleep because I have nct been able to sleep.
And, when I do, I have really bad dreams.

I live my life afraid. I can't.even stay
alone in my own house. I.lock every single lock on every h
single door and I am still scared.

I am afraid of men now, even ones I knew
before this happened. To get in a car with men, especially
in the back seat, it takes everything I have got. And I am
still scared even with my own grandpa.

I am always watching the road to make sure
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we are going the way we are supposed to be geoing. I started
school two weeks after the rape. I had to get some of'my
classes changed so that I would only have female teachers. I
am afraid to trust anybody. I have never in my life béen =Ye}
scared. I am still scared. I feel like I have to watch my
back every second of everyday. And I hate it.

I hate that I have no freedom. I am afraid
to go anywhere alone. My brother walks me to and from my
friend's house and my mom drives me wherever else I go.

I hate this. No one should ever -- have to
be this afraid ever. My family and closest friends don't
know what to say or do. They all want to Help me. They just
don't know how. I don't even know how. My brother goes into
another room and we start talking about the rape. My brother
feels like he let me down. He does not know what to say or
do. He feels helpless. My grandfather can find no words to
say how much this has torn him up.

What he says over and over is how lucky we
are to have me here. My mother feels she let me down because
she wasn't there to protect me from him. My best friend is
afraid to talk about it because she is afraid she might say
the wrong thing. She won't though.

I feel so much grief in this. I\am S0

embarrassed by it. And I am so afraid that he will come back
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and do this again, maybe even worse. But, like my grandma
always used to say, God never gives you anything that he
thinks you cannot handle.

This has made me wonder.

I know I will survive this and I hope one
day I can help other victims. I know how terrible it can
be. I have lived it nonstop for the past eight months and
will for the rest of my life.

I would never wish this kind of life on
anybody in the whole world. I think Michael Botelho shéuld
receive the maximum sentence for what he did and took from me
to make sure that he can never do this to any other girl
ever.

Nobody should ever have to go through the
pain, humiliation, the anguish, the terror that I have. I
didn't deserve this. No one does. I didn't ever want -- I
don't want to ever have to worry that there will be a day
that Michael Botelho will be reieased from prison and come
knocking on my door. He warned me, if I ever told anyone,
that he would come back and do worse. I don't want that to

happen. I just want to be me again.

Q Was that your statement?
A Yes.
Q Just a few questions. I want to follow-up,
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if I might. Are you receiving therapy right now?

A Yes.

Q How often?

A Once a week.

Q And how long do the medical providers think

that you are going to be under care?
A I don't know.
Q I would invite any questions from
Mr. Sullivan.
MR. SULLIVAN: Judge. The defense has no guestions for
this witness. Thank you.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you. You may step
down.
MR. HAHN: Your Honor, the next witness will ke the
mother of Jane Doe.
I am gorry.
Would you please raise your right hand and
be sworn.
-000-
JANE DOE'S MOTHER
being first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

oourt

6
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BY MR. HAHN:

Q Ma'am, you are the mother of the child that
just spoke here in court?

A Yez, I am.

Q bid you prepare a statement that you would

like to offer to Judge Polaha?

A Yeg, I did.
0 Please.
A All she wanted to do is earn a little bit of

money so she could help buy her school clothes and supplies
for her first year in high school that was starting in two
weeks. She didn't earn anything that day. Instead she lost
a part of herself that she will never be able to get back.

She lost that little-girl innocence that she
has always had, that special sparkle that was always in her
eyes. She lost her independence, her freedom, her ability to
trust and a lot of her confidence and self-esteem. And I
lost my little girl.

These past eight months have been
eXcruciating. The endless doctors appointments, blood tests,
x-rays, ultra sounds, therapy appointments, more blocd tests
and on and on, all in the desperate attempt to get back at
least some of what this amazing young woman has lost since

that date,
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I have so hated taking her to this
appointment and that appointment, seeing the terror in her
eyes, the pain and fear of more unfamiliar tests or the next
prccedure. The agony of what this whole nightmare is deing
to her, pain, that for the first time, as her mommy, I can't
just kiss away. I'll never be able to kiss it away.

She is always the champ though. Through all
of this she has done what she's had to de, regardless, and
has held her head up high and endured mcre trauma and fear
than any perscn on the face of the earth, let alone a now
fifteen year c¢ld girl should ever have to.

My daughter is a remarkable young lady. She
isn't like a lot of the teenage girls that we see running
around the streets these days. She is a good, honest,
decent, honorable, responsible, loving young lady with real -
true morals, values and beliefs.

In my lifetime, I have seen few people as
kind or loving or as generous as she. Her heart has no
limits.

She is currently on petition for the
International Order of Rainbow For Girls, a civic group for
teenage girls that is a descendent of the Masonic Lodge and
the Shriners.

She works hard in school and is a pole
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vaulter on the school track team. She volunteers every
Saturday morning, a day I'd guess most teenagers sleep rather
late, at a local bowling alley helping and teaching young
children how to bowl.

Every Monday after school ghe is at her old
elementary school tutoring second graders in reading.

She used to baby-sit a lot until this animal
using the pretense of a baby-sitting job kidnapped her,
attacked her, terrorized her, hit her and then he raped her.

She hasn’'t been able to baby-sit since.

She is a wvery beautiful young lady and had
been doing some modeling, the results of which have always
been unbelievable. She is a delight to work with and her
beauty is refreshing.

she hasn't done much modeling either since
the attack.

I adore my daughter. There is no doubt in
the world about that. And I am so extfemely blessed to have
such a loving and very close relationship with her.

The day I adopted her and her older brother
was when I felt my life was finally complete and they have
shown me each and every day how truly fortunate I am.

She has been in intense weekly treatment

with a clinical psychologist.

68
V3.331




. V3332 ® )

10

11

12

13

14

15

1ls

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Her doctor feels it will take at least five
more years Of therapy for her to get to a point where she can
comfortably live with this nightmare and proceed with a
relatively normal life.

Thig isn't something she will ever be able
to get over or forget about.

She will carry the horror and the terror
she's experienced with her for the rest of her 1ife.

Her therapy has come along steadily but very
slowly.

It has been terribly hard for her
emotionally to even accept what happened to her. She isg
still in a lot of denial about it.

They feel that, given the extreme
circumstances, she is only able to process a little at a time
or she becomes so overwhelmed that she doesn't know which way
to go and retreats back into denial.

She is having a terrible time with sleep,
getting to sleep or staying asleep. And when she finally can
rest, the nightmares come.

There are nights when I wake up to blecod
curdling screams and go to her and she is scaked with sweat
and trembling viclently.

It takes me hours to calm her down enough to
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go back to sleep.

Other nights while she is sound asleep she
cries, sobs in her sleep.

When I wake her up from this, she just lays
in my arms and cries her heart out. 8he is still so afraid.

She was placed on antidepressant,
antianxiety medication immediately after the attack and just
recently was put on a prescription medication to help her
sleep.

She was hypnotized a few months ago. But
when it wasn't helping anymore they prescribed the pills for
her.

No fifteen year old should have to go
through any of this.

When the detectives realized that he was on
the run and especially since he had threatened her that if
she told anyone what had happened he would come back and do
worse, they warned me to make sure she was never out of my or
any other responsible and informed adult's sight literally.

For the next three weeks she was never
alone, not even for a second.

Even when she was at home, I found myself
just checking in on her to make sure she was okay.

Instead of enjoying the last of her summer
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vacation like most of the other kids, she spent it alone,
looking over her shoulder and in constant fear.

When Detective Herrera called and told me he
was 1n custody, although relieved, it was impossible even
then to feel safe.

My heart still stops when she walks away
from me. I wonder if any of us will ever feel safe again.

Before thisg happened, she was given the
freedom of an average teenager. She went to movies with
friends or walked to the store or to nearby friends houses.

Now, eight months later, we still make sure
she is driven to wherever she needs to go.

She doesn't walk anywhere anymore. Anywhere
we go, she is always by my =side.

Recently she has started going out a bit
with her friends, but I always drop them off and pick them up
at the door. And I am never too far away.

éhe has no freedom or the chance to just get
away by herself.

This is not a rule that I've imposed on
her. 1It's just the way it has become for all of us.

I'm afraid to let her out of my sight and
she is afraid to be out of my sight.

She tries to recapture her independence but
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is so afraid and untrusting now that it's hard.

What had always been such a bright, bubbly,
happy, positive outgoing young lady has turned into a scared,
sad, withdrawn little girl.

There are times that it seems like her
spirit has just been drained right out of her.

The look of sadness and fear that 1s so deep
in her eyes is heart breaking.

I want to see her smile again and hear that
cute little laugh of hers.

I miss the twinkle in her eyes and the
bounce in her step.

I want my daughter back.

We've learned the hard way that when someone
is raped, especially your child, it doesn't just happen to
her. It happens to the whole family.

We hurt obviously not to the degree that
this has hurt my daughter so terribly but in so many oﬁher
ways.

This has even changed her friends and
friends of my son's as weli.

My father is eighty-three years old and
underwent a triple bypass surgery three years ago.

He is very close to my children and the love
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they share ig immeasurable.

It killed me to have to tell him that his
girl had been raped. I was terrified that he would have-
another heart attack or worse.

Thankfully, he didn't. But I am not sure if
I have ever seen such pain and hurt in his eyes;

He's been our rock through this, as daddies
often are. But his grief is plain to see.

This just broke his heart.

' We lost my dear mother last year and for
once I was SO glad she wasn't here to see this.

She was my children's biological great
grandmother before I adopted them. So there was a spgcial
bond there.

My daughter spoon fed her some of her meals
in the days before she passed away. That was how close they
were.

I thank God she was spared the pain of this.

Her brother, who is eleven months older, is
at a terrible loss over this.

He feels the rage and pain that we all feel
along with the guilt that he wasn't abie to protect his
little gigter from something so horrible.

He has become withdrawn and clings to both
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her and I more than ever.

He has confessed to me ;hat he doesn't know
how to act with her or how to treat her.

They have always been very close. At times
it's as 1f he they can feel each other's pain.

Like now watching what gshe has to go through
is tearing him up. He can't understand how or why someone
could inflict such terrible pain on an innocent girl. None
of us can.

My children are my heart beat. Each of them
so incredible in their own special way.

Jane's the baby, my baby girl.

The one that the doctors said at three
pounds wouldn't even make it through her first night. But
she fought to survive, just as she's had to do for the past
eight months.

To have something this devastating happen to
your own daughter is a hurt no mother should ever have to
endure. It's a pain so hard and so deep that I can't begin
to describe the intensity.

My heart has crumbled.

Seeing her strength and her courage-through
all of this is all that has sustained me. During the worst

time in her life she's been weorried about me that I am all
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right, protecting me.

That's what kind of a person she is.

That's what she is and has always been all
about.

What this animal, himself a parent, did to
my precious daughter is beyond comprehension.

I have watched what the pain and the fear
that he imposed on her has done and continues to db to her
and it is killing me. His fantasies turned our world
horribly, tragically upside-down.

I am a single mother and own and operate a
residential cleaning business.

I am my business. I am our income. I have
missed so much work for all of the obvious reasons since this
has happened that I have been lucky to pay our rent.

I work hard for my money and the sleepless
nights I spend comforting and rocking her back to sleep for
half of the night after a nightmare, my own endless crving,
tossing and turning the rest of the night from fear and
sadness and heart break, wondering how I'll pay the bills,
how I can protect my kids, how I can help my daughter try to
rebuild her shattered life, how can I’help my son try to deal
with what hapbened to his gister, my worries for my father

and his health in trying to cope with this. This list is
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endless.

My health has nose dived. I'm so tirea and
rundown all the time. I catch every bug around. I have
developed stress related ulcers which results in more lost
work and more lost money. I was barely able to keep our
heads above water before this tragedy.

I am the mom. I am supposed to be the
strong one, but it's so terribly hard now. It's hard to be
strong when your greatest fear materializes and your world
crumbles to pieces.

There aren't words to describe the feelings
of contempt and hatred I have for this man and %or what he
did to my daughter.

They are so intense and so deep.

I have never felt this way before. I never
realized I was capable of it.

This man took something away from my
daughter and our family that we can never again have. He has
damaged each of us in irreparable ways. His actions have
forever changed our lives.

Michael boat is not fit to be free among
others ever to do this again, to destroy the life and the
dreams of a young girl or to tear another family's life apart

the way he did ourse.
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I do thank God each and every day that he
did bring her home, broken and battered. But home to her
family with enough love to put her back together again.

We will heal in time. But we will nevér
understand his selfish and cruel acts or why he picked our
family.

Cur greatest hope is that he will receive
the maximum sentences for each charge with no chances for
parcle, ever and that everyday for the rest of his miserable
life he is reminded of all the pain he's caused and all of
the irreversible damage he's done. We believe he deserves at
leagt that.

THE COURT: All right.
MR. HAHN: I would invite any questions from
Mr. Sullivan.
MR, SULLIVAN: I have a few questions, Judge. Thank

you.

* CROSS EXAMINATION *
BY MR, SULLIVAN:
Q Mrs. Jane Doe, could you please clarify for
the Court and myself, I believe Mr. Hahn throughout his
argument articulated that my client actually placed the

baby-sitter ad which we know is not true. Would you tell us

B
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who placed the ad?

A My daughter placed the ad in a local -- it's

»called the Bug, one of the local freebie newspapers.

Q That's a local paper in Carson City?
A Out of Gardnerville, Carson Valley.
Q Thank you. I appreciate that. and, in

addition, I believe the State referenced that your daughter
had not babysat -- or babysat before in the past; that it was
her first time. But you articulated she had babysat?

A She babysat for probably two years, maybe
three years before that.

Q Okay. Okay. And just one last!question
that I have. Your family or your daughter did not know my
client prior to the incident that we are talking ébout?

A He called a few weeks before the actual --
when he actually attacked her, he called to set it up. He
setup -- he said he was divorced and was going to have
visitation of his children for a month and asked if she would
be interested in just a -- a short term job instead of like
an ongoing job. And they discussed at that time -- he said
he would call her back when he found out when his children
would be vigiting.

Q Thank you, Mrs, Doe. I have no further

questions.

8
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* REDIRECT EXAMINATICN *
BY MR. HAHN:
Q When I asked about and represented the
information concerning the baby-sitting job, that had been

with people that she had known before?

A Yes, yes, it had been like -- real close
friends or -- family members, so to speak. About, yeah, she
had worked for -- she had one lady in particular she babysat

for for about two years like once or twice a week and then
just odds and ends people here and there.:‘But, yeah, she

would baby-sit.

Q But that was people that she knew?
A Yes.

Q This was the first time --

A Yes,

Q Neothing else. Thank you.

MR. SULLIVAN: Nothing else. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. HAHEN: Your Hornor, I have not been alerted to
anyone else who is going to provide a victim impact
statement.

THE COQURT: All right.

Mr. Botelho, please stand. Any just or
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legal cause why judgment should not now be entered?

MR. SULLIVAN: No, your Honor,.

THE COURT: There being none, the Court doces hereby
adjudge Michael Todd Botelho guilty of the offense set out in
Count I, kidnapping in the first degree, a violation of NRS
200.310(1).

The Court finds him guilty of the charges
that are set out in Counts III, IV and V of that Information
charging sexual assault on a child, a violation of --
viclations of NRS 200.366, all by virtue of his pleas of
guilty entered December the 22nd of last year.

The Court has read the documentation that
was provided. I have read the facts of the case.as contained
in the file. And, of course, I heard the statements that
were made today. And I have read and considered the
recommendation by the Division of Parole and Probatiorm.

Mr. Botelho, you had the opportunity to hear

the impact of the acts that you perpetrated against the young

girl and her family.

I know by reading your statement that you
considered not only the damage done to them but also the
damage that you inflicted on your own family.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: 1In listening to your family and in looking
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1 at your past record, somebody presented to me one time that
2 we are not the sum total of the worst things that we ever

3 did. And, in looking at your background and looking at what
4 your attorney presented to the court, you present an enigma
5 in as much as I can say without too much hesitation that

6 basically you are not a bad person.

7 But you did a very bad thing.

8 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

9 THE COURT: I mean, it is difficult toc contemplate

10 exactly what it was that you did to this young girl in as

11 much as she was coming to you to offer her services for your
12 children.

13 And you took that offer of trust and

14 terrorized. And we say terrorized and use words like that so
15 many times today, awesome words like that, but we forget the
16 true meaning of those words.

17 You did in fact terrorize that young girl.
18 She -- as she indicated, she did not know whether that was
15 the last day of her life. All right. And I cannot imagine
20 what a -- to a fourteen year old person, either girl or boy,
21 who is looking forward the second year of their teen years,
22 locking forward to finishing high school, enjoying high

23 school, going to college and getting on with life, coming to
24 the realization that perhaps this is going to be my last day
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on earth.

As I mentioned earlier, the only, the only
saving fact in this particular case is that you did not
mutilate or kill her and she was returned to her family. She
has to come, you know, with the help of professionals and the’
love that her family has given her to get past this.

I do recognize that in your statement you‘
appreciate what you did to the extent of what you did because
that was an unusual statement. And you went step by step as
to the harm that you inflicted on her, her family and your
own family. Okay. Those are the positives.

The negatives are what you did. And society
has to protect itg children. All right. They are our hope
and our future,

Some acts are so uncivilized that the people
that commit those acts forfeit their place in society.

I do believe that I was concerned about the
message that we send out. And I still am.

And I think that, having heard everything,
that's still a wvalid concern.

But I am certain that the message has to go
out that, if you harm a child, the punishment must be
severe. It must be’'swift. And it must be certain.

S0, in accordance with the laws of the State
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of Nevada, I do hereby sentence you,'Michael Todd Botelho,
for the conviction of Count I, kidnapping, to a term of life
imprisonment with parole eligibility after a term of fifteen
years.

PAROLE & PROBATICN: Your Honor, that was a mistake.
It should be five years.

THE COURT: Five years?

PAROLE & PROBATION: Yes.

THE COURT: ©Oh, you are right. Fifteen definite with
a five-year term. That will be life with parole eligibility
after five years has been gerved.

For Count III, sexual assault on a child, I
am sentencing you to a term of life imprisonment with a
parole eligibility after twenty years has been served.

That count and sentence will run ;onsecutive
to the sentence that I meted out in Count I.

For Count IV I sentence you to a like term
of life imprisonment with a minimum parole eligibility of
twenty years. That count will run concurrent with the
second -- excuse me, with Count IIT.

and for Count V, I sentence you to a term of
life imprisonment with a parole eligibility after twenty
years. And that will run consecutive to Counts III and IV,

Now, what that means is you will be sent to
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prison for the rest of your life with a minimum parole
eligibility of forty-five years. You will be given credit
for one hundred fofty—one days served.

MR. SULLIVAN: Your Honor, I believe there is a
correction on the credit time served.

PAROLE & PROBATION: That should be one hundred
ninety-seven days.

THE COUﬁT: 1977

PAROLE & PROBATION: Yes.

THE COURT: You will be given credit for omne hundred
ninety-seven days. I am ordering you to effect restitution
in the amount of six hundred seven dollars.

PAROLE & PRCBATION: It should be six hundred
thirty-two. The prosecutor misspoke the amount. The family
is requesting two hundred ninety-four dollars restituticn.
So if you add the amounts together it comes out to 632.

THE COURT: 6327

PAROLE & PROBATION: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. I am ordering that you submit
to genetic marker testing. And there is a one hundred fifty
dollar fee for that. I am assessing a five hundred dollar
fee, a twenty-five dollar administrative assessment fee.

Finally, if, in the event that you did get

paroled, you will be subject pursuant to NRS 176.0931 to a
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condition cf lifetime supervision.

(At this time the foregoing proceedings were concluded.)
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1 STATE OF NEVADA )
2 )ss.
3 COUNTY OF WASHCE )}
4 I, JOAN MARIE DOTSON, a Certified Shorthand
5 Reporter for the Second Judicial District Court of the State
6 of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe DC HEREBY CERTIFY;
7 That I was presgsent in Department No. 3 of
8 the court on Wednesday, April 7th, 2004 and took wverbatim
S stenotype notes of the proceedings and thereafter transcribed
10 them into typewriting as herein appears;
11 That the foregoing transcript is a full,
12 true and correct transcription of my said stenotype notes and
13 is a full, true and correct record of the proceedings had and
; 14 the testimony given in the above-entitled action to the best

15 of my knowledge, skill and ability.
16
17
18 DATED: This 9th day of April, 2004.
19

20 . gﬁzm%

21 J&AN MARIE DOTSON, CSR #102

22

23
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOCE.

* % X
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Case No. CRO3-2156
V.
Dept. No. 3
MICHAEIL TCDD BROTELHQO
also known as
'KEVIN',
Defendant.
/

MOTION TO DISMISS

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through RICHARD A.
GAMMICK, District Attorney of Washoe County, and BRUCE C. HAHN,
Deputy District Attorney, and moves the above-entitled Court to
dismiss COUNT II filed against the above-named defendant on October

8, 2003, on the Indictment in case number CR03-2156.
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A

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

* X %
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Case No. CR03-2156
V.
Dept. No. 3
MICHARL TODD BOTELHO
also known as
'KEVIN',
Defendant.
/
ORDER

Based upon the Motion of the District Attorney filed
herein, and good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that COUNT II of the Indictment in
case number CR03-2156 filed against the above-named defendant on

October 8, 2003, be, and the same hereby is dismissed.

DATED this ég? day of M , 205'.
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DISTR%%?VJUDGE
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CODE 2515 ) , 2004 APR 30 PM 2: 29
WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
JOHN RERSE PETTY, State Bar No. 10 RGNS ; ~:"‘?f_§r‘! JR.
350 SCUTH CENTER STREET, SUITE 600 R
RENG, NEVADA 89501
(77hYy 337-4827 MEPUTY

Attorney for Defendant.

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA _
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY CF WASHCE

TEE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
vs. Case No. CR03-2156
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, DePt; No. 3
Defendant.

/

NOTICE OF APPEAL

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that MICHAEL TODD BOTELHC the

- defendant above named, hereby dppeals to the Supreme Court of

Nevada from the judgment entered in this acficn con April 7, 2004,
This is not a fast track appeal. NRAP 3C.
, Tk . .
DATED this f3ci day of April, 2004.
MICHAFRL R. SPECCHIO

Washoe County Public
—Défender

- \
JOHN REESE PETTY/
Chief Deputy
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on MAY 3, 2004, I served a copy of
the foregoing by mailing it by first class mail with sufficient

postage prepaid to the following addresses:

JANETTE M. BLOOM, CLERK

QFFICE CF THE CLERK

SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

201 SOUTH CARSON STREET SUITE 201
CARSON CITY, NEVADA B89701-4702

MICHAEIL TODD BOTELHO #80837
NORTHERN NEVADA CORRECTICNAL CENTER
PO BOX 7000

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89702

BRIAN SANDOVAL

ATTORNEY GENERAL STATE OF NEVADA
100 N. CARSON STREET

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701

And served a copy by inter-office mail to:

RICHARD GAMMICEK
WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Attn: GARY HATLESTAD, CHIEF APPELLATE DEPUTY

Dy
DATED this IR day of MAY, 2004

\.

;.‘ \..‘-'\_\'. - \ »'::) ‘[“ "l N )
RS CE RTINS L@ S5 aT ARG I

Charlene Gaskins
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WASHUE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

JOHN REESE PETITY, State Bar No. 10
350 SOUTH CENTER STREET, Suite 600
RENO, NEVADA 59501

(775) 337-4827
Attorney for Defendant.

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL Dl

Plaintitt,
vS.
MLICHARL TODD BOTELHO,

Defendant.

CASE APPEAIL

1. Appellant, MICHAEL

Case Appeal Statement;

2. This appeal is

entered on April /, 2004, by

district judge;
3. The parties below

NEVADA, Plaintiff; and (b) MICHAEL

4, The parties herein consist of

BOTELHO Appellant; and {b)
i

i

trom a Jjudgmerit of

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

mes 8 [
i
e F
I

é,

2004 APR 30 PH 2:21
JWETH, JR

case No. CRU3-2156

Dept. No. 3

/
STATEMENT

TODD BOTELHO hereby tiles this

conviction
the Honorable Jerome Polaha,

¢gonsisted ot (a) THE STATE QOF
TODD BOTELHO defendant;
{a; MICHAEL TQDD

Respondent;

V3.355
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5. Counsel on appeal are:

MICHAEL R. SPECCHIO RICHARD A. GAMMICK
Washoe County Public Washoe County District
Defender ‘ Attorney

JOHN REESE PETTY GARY H. HATLESTAD
Chief Deputy Chief Deputy

350 south Center Street P.0O. Box 30083

Suite ©00 . Reno, Nevada 89520

Reno, Nevada 89501

TTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT
6. Appellant, MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO was represented by
the Washoe County Public Defender in district court:

I, Bppellant, MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO is represented by
the Washoe County Public Defender in this appeal; |

8. Not applicable; and

9. By an Indictment filed in this case on October 8,
2003, MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO was charged with one count ot
kidnapping in the first degree, a violation of Nﬁs 200.310-1 and
NRS 200.320, a felony; one count of'battery with the intent to
commit sexual assault on a child, a violation ot NRS 2007400, a
telony: and three counts of sexual assault on a child, a
violation of NRS 200.366, a felony.

On Decemher 11, 2003, MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO entéred his
guilty pleas to the kidnapping céunt as well as to the three
counts of sexual assault on a child.

1777
1itf
1/

V3.356
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on April 7, 2004, Judge Polaha sentenced MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO to a term of life in the Nevada State Prison with the
possibility of parole after a minimum of five (5) years has been
served on count I (kidnapping); and to a term of life in the
Nevada State prison (on each of the sexual assault counts) with
the possibility of parole after a term of twenty (20} years has
been served. With the exception of one of the sexual assault
charges, each of the sentences imposed by Judge Polaha were
ordered td be served consecutively and not concurrently.
| This is not a fast track appeal. See NRAP 3C.
DATED this 7o'  day of April, 2004,
MICHAEL R. SPLCCHLO
Washoe County Public
Defend

By: N

JOHN REESE PETTY
Chief Deputy
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on MAY 3, 2004, I served a copy of

the foregoing by mailing it by first class mail with sufficient

postage prepaid to the following addresses:

JANETTE M. BLOOM, CLERK

QFFICE OF THE CLERK

SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

201 SOUTH CARSON STREET SUITE 201
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4702

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO #80837
NORTHERN NEVADA CORRECTICNAL CENTER
PO BOX 7060

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89702

BRIAN SANDOVAL

ATTORNEY GENERAL STATE OF NEVADA
100 N. CARSON STREET

CARSCN CITY, NEVADA 89701

And served a copy by inter-office mail to:
RICHARD GAMMICK

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Attn: GARY HATLESTAD, CHIEF APPELLATE DEPUTY

Q
"
DATED this JPD day of MAY, 2004

N,

R i w1 e e T
\‘_:j{“\\(ub\‘&%l\k A ) (E,&\xg—\f\_} )

Charlene Gaskins
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TRUTY
IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,

Appellant,
VS.

Case No. CR03-2156

Dept. No. 3
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent,

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK
| hereby certify that the enclosed documents are certified copies of the original

pleadings on file with the Second Judicial District Court, in.accordance with the
Revised Rules of Appellant Procedure Rule D(1).

Dated: MAY 3, 2004

V3.359
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%’; . IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
'ﬁiié IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
5'5o;.
10 || MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
11 Appellant, Case No. CR03-2156
12 e Dept. No. 3
13 || THE STATE OF NEVADA,
14 Respondent,
/
15
16
17
18 CERTIFICATE OF TRANSMITTAL
19 |} hereby certify that the enclosed Notice of Appeal and other required documents
20 1| (certified copies), were delivered to the Second Judicial District Court mailroom
21 |1 system for transmittal to the Nevada Supreme Court.
22
23 || Dated: MAY 3, 2004 #
25 B:'y_:
26 K
27
28
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RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS

TO: Washoe County Public Defender and Michael R. Specchio, Public
Defender and John Reese Petty, Chief Deputy Public Defender

Attorney General Brian Sandoval/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Ronald A. Longtin Jr., District Court Clerk -

You are hereby notified that the Clerk of the Supreme Court has received and/or filed the following

05/05/04 Filing Fee Waived: Criminal.
05/05/04 Filed Certified Copy of Notice of Appeal.
Appeal docketed in the Supreme Court this day. (Docketing statement mailed to counsel

for appellant.)

DATE: May 05, 2004

Janette M. Bloom, Clerk of Court

By:

Deputy Clerk
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Code 2230

WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
JOHN REESE PETTY, STATE BAR NO. 10
ONE SOUTH CENTER STREET, SUITE 600 B /sl

RENO, NV 89501 LRy
(775) 337-4827

Attorney for the Defendant

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FORE THE COUNTY OF WASHOE .

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
vsS. ' Case No. CR0O3-2156
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, Dept. No. 3
Defendant.

/

MOTION FOR TRANSCRIPT AT PUBLIC EXPENSE
AND SPECIFICATION OF ERROR

Defendant, MICHAEI. TODD BOTELHO, by and through his counsel
on appeal, moves for an Order dgranting Defendant a copy of the
transcript of his hearing held on March 11, 2004, at County
expense, for preparation of his appeal. .Notice of Appeal was
timely filed by the Defendant in the Sécond Judicial District
Court of the State of Nevada.

Defendant had been represented by the Washoe County Public
Defender’s Office and/or conflict counsel, and the Public
Defender has been appointed to handle the appeal. Defendant
cannot pay for the transcript due to his alleged indigency.

/17
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Defendant requires these transcripts to explore and develop
the following potential issues on appeal:

To determine whether improper evidence was allowed to be
used during sentencing in this matter on April 7, 2004.

e §
DATED this _iY_ day of May, 2004.

MICHA; SPECCHIO
~Washoe County Public Defender

/ \_}

By: Q\\\3&£¥ '
OHN REESE “PETTY -

ief Deputy Public Defender
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on MAY 18, 2004, I served a copy of
the foregoing by mailing it by first class mail with sufficient

postage prepaid to the following addresses:

JANETTE M. BLOOM, CLERK

QFFICE OF THE CLERK

SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

201 SOUTH CARSON STREET, SUITE 201
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89702

J. DOTSON

C/0 DEPARTMENT THREE

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
75 COURT STREET

RENO, NEVADA 89501

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO #80837
NORTHERN NEVADA CORRECTIONAL CENTER
PO BOX 7000

CARSON CITY, NEVADA 895702

And served a copy by inter-office mail to:

RICHARD GAMMICK

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE
Attention: GARY HATLESTAD, Appellate Deputy
Via interocffice Mail

DATED this _ day of March, 2004

% (oS

Charlene Gaskins
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gm IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
I~
O >
;85 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
REik:
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
10 . .
Plaintiff,
1 vs. Case No. CR03-2156
12 :
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, Dept. No. ‘3
13
Defendant.
14 /
15 ORDER
16 The Court having reviewed the Specifications of Error
17 [[ filed by Defendant, and good cause appearing,
18 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the requested transcript of
19 | defendant’s hearing held on March 11, 2004, be provided to the
79 || Defendant at County expense pursuant to NRS 3.370(4).
21 DATED this ZZ%day of May, 2004.
. %W—-«
23 : '
ﬂISTRICT JUDGE
24
25
26
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

the foregoing mailing it by first class mail with sufficient
postage prepaid to the following addresses:

JANETTE M. BLOOM

CLERE OF THE COURT

SUPREME COURT CF NEVADA

201 SOUTH CARSON STREET, SUITE 201
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89701-4702
MICHAE TCDD BOTELHC #80837

NCRTHERN NEVADA CORRECTICNAL CENTER
PC BCX 7000

CARSCN CITY, NEVADA 89702

J. DOTSON

C/1 DEPARTMENT THREE

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURET
75 COURT STREET

CARSCN CI TY, NEVADA 89702

RICHARD GAMMICK

Washoe County District Attorney

Attention: GARY HATLESTAD, Appellate Deputy
Via Interoffice mail

DATED this QND day of JUNE, 2004
L]

Charlene Gaskins

V3.366
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%

2§ea: ROMALD . LOAETI JR,
ga="¢ | MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, No. 43247 W
S BY £/
St Appellant, o LS
328 ve: =i LY
g§§ THE STATE OF NEVADA, ™ s de

g Respondent. 7

%'53 APR 0 4 2005
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This is an appeal from a judgment of conviction, entered

SuPREME COURT
oF
NEvaDA

(C) 19474

pursuant to a guilty plea, of one count of kidnapping and three counts of
sexual assault on a child. Second Judicial District Court, Washoe County;
Jerome Polaha, Judge. |

The district court sentenced appellant Michael Botelho to a
prison term of life with the possibility of parole for kidnapping and prison
terms of life with the possibility of parole for each count of sexual assault. |
The terms for two counts of sexual assault were imposed.to run
concurrently to one another and consecutively to the term for kidnapping.

The term for the remaining count of sexual assault was imposed to run

consecutively to the two concurrent terms for sexual assault.
Botelho cites to the dissent in Tanksley v. State! and asks this

court to review his sentence to see if justice was done. He claims that the

sexual assaults that he perpetrated on the victim were a continuous act

and were completed in a matter of minutes.2 He contends that the district

1113 Nev. 844, 850, 944 P.2d 240, 244 (1997) (Rose, dJ., dissenting).

2Botelho cites Crowley v. State, 120 Nev. 30, 34, 83 P.3d 282, 285-86

(2004), in which we concluded that Crowley's convictions for sexual
: continued on next page . . .
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court should have imposed concurrent sentences to reflect the
uninterrupted nature of his assault. And he argues that this court should
ensure that the punishment fits the crime.

We have consistently afforded the district court wide
discretion in its sentencing decisions, and we have refrained from
interfering with the sentence imposed when "the record does not
demonstrate prejudice resulting from consideration of information or
accusations founded on facts supported only by impalpable or highly
suspect evidence."® Regardless of its severity, a sentence within the
statutory limits is not cruel and unusual punishment where the statute
itself is constitutional and the sentence is not so unreasonably
disproportionate to the crime as to shbck the conscience.4 |

Botelho does not allege that the district court relied on
impalpable or highly suspect evidence or that the sentencing statutes are
unconstitutional. The sentences imposed were within the parameters
prqvided by the relevant statutes.? And the sentences were not so
unreasonably disproportionate to the crimes as to shock the conscience.
Botelho admitted to kidnapping the 14-year-old victim and perpetrating

three distinct acts of sexual assault upon her: forcing her to perform

... continued |

assault and lewdness with a minor were redundant because Crowley's
actions were uninterrupted: "Crowley's act of rubbing the male victim's
penis on the outside of his. pants was a prelude to touching the victim's
penis inside his underwear and the fellatio."

3Gilks v. State, 92 Nev. 91, 94, 545 P.2d 1159, 1161 (1976).

4Blume v. State, 112 Nev. 472, 475, 915 P.2d 282, 284 (1996).

58ee NRS 200.310(1); NRS 200.320(2)(a); NRS 200.366(3)(b)(1).
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fellatio on him, subjecting her to cunnilingus, and subjecting her to
vaginal intercourse. Contrary to Botelho's assertion, his sexual assaults
were not one continuous act, and the district court was not_required to
treat them as one at sentencing.f® Accordingly, we conclude that the
district court did not abuse its discretion when sentencing Botelho.

Having considered Botelho's contentions and concluded that
they lack merit, we

ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.

Gibbons

AR 3. & ,J.

Hardesty l

cc: Hon. Jerome Polaha, District Judge
Washoe County Public Defender
Attorney General Brian Sandoval/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerk

6See Deeds v. State, 97 Nev. 216, 217, 626 P.2d 271, 272 (1981)
("The great weight of authority supports the proposition that separate and
distinct acts of sexual assault committed as a part of a single criminal
encounter may be charged as separate counts and convictions entered
thereon."); see also Peck v. State, 116 Nev. 840, 848, 7 P.3d 470, 475
(2000). :
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

FILED

Supreme Court No. '43241005 MAY -3 AN 9: 4§

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHQ,

Appellant,
vs. ,

- s£0-{E STATE OF NEVADA, District Court Case No. CR033Y
a8 g ¥spondent. '
2’5 ©
Siw
358
aod REMITTITUR
482

QG ‘O: Ronald A. Longtin Jr., Washoe District Court Clerk

I+

VL
w5§‘§ ‘ursuant to the rules of this court, enclosed are the following:
e
JwiB Certified copy of Judgment and Opinion/Order.
Saas Receipt for Remittitur.

DATE: April 29, 2005
Janette M. Bloom, Clerk of Court

By: ,W‘K M?Q.:—
Chief Beputy Clerk

cc: Hon. Jerome Polaha, District Judge
Attorney General Brian Sandoval/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick

Washoe County Public Defender .

RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR "

BY

g%‘tKLU Fuob

LONGTIN, JR.
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T IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA F l | E D
-3 AH 9: LE
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, Supreme Court No. 43247 2005 KAY
Appellant, RONALGA. LONGTIN, JF
VS,
£ ¢ JECIF STATE OF NEVADA, District Court Case No. CRO32156BY
= g_s~spondent.
-
= cpyg
=isc
=158 CLERK'S CERTIFICATE
<] =T,
—— o
= 51, TATE OF NEVADA, ss.
E ;f'g; Janette M. Bloom, the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of
= §'§:ﬁ(evada do hereby certify that the following is a full, true and correct copy of the Judgment in this
SwdRgatter. .

JUDGMENT

The court being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged and decreed

as follows: "ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.”

Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 4th day of April, 2005.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | have subscribed. my name and affixed
the seal of the Supreme Court at my Office in Carson C:ty,

Nevada, this 29th day of April, 2005.
Janette M. Bloom, Supreme Court Clerk

By: oSS arde.

Chief Beputy Clerk

V3.371
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA"
2005 HAY -3 AM|[S: L6

= 1%*t| MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, No. 4394 RONALD A. LONG]IN. JR
= ?‘E Appellant, _ 8Y./

=i | oy DL
=%s2 | THE STATE OF NEVADA, | {h. 2l

E -8 Respondent.

= APR 0 4 2005

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE  cueafan Syshene CouRT

This is an appeal from a judgment of conviction, entered

STATE V5. MICHAEL TODD BOTEL
District Court
Washoe County

CRD2-2156

pursuant to a guilty plea, of one count of kidnapping and three counts of
sexual assault on a child. Second Judicial District Court, Washoe County;
Jerome Polaha, Judge. |

The district court sentenced appellant Michael Botelho to a
prison term of life with the possibility of parole for kidnapping and prison
terms of life with the possibility of parole for each count of sexual assault.
The terms for two counts of sexual assault were imposed to run
concurrently to one another and consecutively to the term for kidnapping.
The term for the remaining count of sexual assault was imposed to run
consecutively to the two concurrent terms for sexual assault.

Botelho cites to the dissent in Tanksley v. State! and asks this

court to review his sentence to see if justice was done. He claims that the
sexual assaults that he perpetrated on the victim were a continuous act

and were completed in a matter of minutes.2 He contends that the district

1113 Nev. 844, 850, 944 P.2d 240, 244 (1997) (Rose, J., dissenting).

2Botelho cites Crowley v. State, 120 Nev. 30, 34, 83 P.3d 282, 285-86
(2004), in which we concluded that Crowley's convictions for sexual
continued on next page. . .
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court should have imposed concurrent sentences to reflect the
uninterrupted nature of his assault. And he argues that this court should
ensure that the punishment fits the crime.

We have consistently afforded the district court wide
discretion in its sentencing decisions, and we have refrained from
interfering with the sentence imposed when "the record does not
demonstrate prejudice resulting from consideration of information or
accusations founded on facts supported only by impalpable or highly
suspect evidence."® Regardless of its severity, a sentence within the
statutory limits is not cruel and unusual punishment where the statute
itself is constitutional and the sentence is not so unreasonably
disproportionate to the crime as to shock the conscience.* | |

Botelho does not allege that the district court relied on
impalpable or highly suspect evidence or that the sentencing statutes are
unconstitutional. The sentences imposed were within the parameters
provided by the relevant statutes.® And the sentences were not so
unreasonably disproportionate to the crimes as to shock the conscience.
Botelho admitted to kidnapping the 14-year-old victim and perpetrating

three distinct acts of sexual assault upon her: forcing her to perform

.. .continued

assault and lewdness with a minor were redundant because Crowley's
actions were uninterrupted: "Crowley's act of rubbing the male victim's
penis on the outside of his pants was a prelude to touching the victim's
penis inside his underwear and the fellatio."

3Silks v. State, 92 Nev. 91, 94, 545 P.2d 1159, 1161 (1976).

4Blume v, State, 112 Nev. 472, 475, 915 P.2d 282, 284 (1996).

5See NRS 200.310(1); NRS 200.320(2)(a); NRS 200.366(3)(b)X1).
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fellatio on him, subjecting her to cunnilingus, and subjecting her to
vaginal intercourse. Contrary to Botelho's assertion, his sexual assaults
were not one continuous act, and the district court was not required to
treat them as one at sentencing.® Accordingly, we conclude that the
district court did not abuse its discretion when sentencing Botelho.

Having considered Botelho's contentions and concluded that
they lack merit, we

ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.

i;Zu , .
R

ose

Gibbons

Reutt, . d

Hardesty '

cc:  Hon. Jerome Polaha, District Judge
Washoe County Public Defender
Attorney General Brian Sandoval/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney Richard A. Gammick
Washoe District Court Clerk

6See Deeds v. State, 97 Nev. 216, 217, 626 P.2d 271, 272 (1981)
("The great weight of authority supports the proposition that separate and
distinct acts of sexual assault committed as a part of a single criminal
encounter may be charged as separate counts and convictions entered
thereon."); see also Peck v. State, 116 Nev. 840, 848, 7 P.3d 470, 475
(2000).
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undersigned will bring the foregoing motion on for hearing before
the above-entitled Court and Department Number, on the date and
time set forth on the caption above, or as soon thereafter as the

matter may be heard.
16l TH
Dated this SE¥ENTH day of JULY, 2005

—Mg, ,,,,,,,,,,

Michael T. Botelha # 80837
Lovelock Correctional Center
P.0O.Box 359
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Defendant In Pro Se

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Although an attorney may not withdraw as counsel of record
if doing so would adversely affect the client's interest, Madrid
v. Gomez, 150 F.3d 1030, 1038-39 (9th Cir. 1998}, the client
may terminate his counsel's representation at any time, Kashefi-

Zihagh v. T.N.S5.,791 F.2d 708, 711 {9th Cir. 1986). See NRS 7.055.

Upon being discharged by his client,

[The][ attorney who has been discharged by his client

shall, upon demand and payment of the fee due from
the client, immediately deliver to the client all papers

y “*docutents; pleadings and“items oI tangible’personal-
property which belong to or were prepared for that
client.

NRS 7.055 (1) (emphasis added). See also Nevada Supreme Court
Rule {SCR) 46 & 166; Second Judicial Court Rule 23(1):; and Eighth
Judicial District Court Rule 7.40(b) (2) (ii}.

As the judgement of conviction has been entered in this case,
with appeal, if any, having been perfected, counsel's services are
no longer required in this criminal matter. Defendant has,

pursuant tc the mandates of NRS 7.055(3), directed counsel to

forward to himall documentation generated in this action

(2) V3.377
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and to withdraw as counsel of record, but counsel has failed
to comply. See Affidavit in support of instant motion.

Counsel's refusal to withdraw himself and forward said
document to Defendant violates the letter and the spirit of
SCR 166(4), which directs a discharged attorney to "protect a
client's interests" by "surrendering papers and property to
which the client.is entitled." This rulegoverning attorney conduct
is a basic one of which the American Bar Association has
recognized by regquiring of all attorneys within Canon 2 of the
Code of Professional Responsibility, EC2-32, and Disciplinary
Rule 2-110(A) {(2). The Nevada Supreme Court has likewise adopted

this rule within SCR 150. See, e.g. Jones, waldo, holbrook, etc

v. Dawson, 923 P.2d 1366, 1376 (Utah 1996).

Counsel herein has no legal basis for withholding Defendants
papers in this matter, as Defendant owes counsel NO fees which
would permit counsel to maintain said papers under a general or

retaining lien. Figliuzzi v. District Court, 111 Nev. 338,

340-341, 890 P.2d798, 800-02 (1995).

Therefore, this Court is moved to exercise its jurisdiction
in this matter and ORDER counsel to be withdrawn as counsel of
record and to deliver to Defendant the entirety of documentation
generated in this instant case, as Defendant has no other remedy
at law to compel counsel to do so.

EI6HTH
Dated this Beverrth day of July, 2005

/Y/MM 725U

Mlchael T. Botelho #80837
Lovelock Correctional Center
P.0O.Box 359

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

kefendant In Pro Se V3.378
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) Case No. CR03-2156

Plaintiff, ) Dept.No. 3

_\rs._

MICHAEL T. BOTELHO, }

Defendant, )
)

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPROT OF MOTION FOR WITHDRAWL
OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD AND TRANSFER OF RECORDS

STATE OF NEVADA )

SS:
COUNTY OF PERSHING )

COMES NOW, MICHAE{LT. BOTELHC, who being fist duly sworn

and under the penalty of perjury, do hereby depose and state the

following:

{l) I am the Defendant in the above-entitled action.

(2) I mailed a letter to Wasce County Public defender

Attorney John Reese Petty on the 12 day of April , 2005, which

which was at least five (5) days prior to the date indicated
below, wherein I gave notice to said counsel of his termination
as counsel of record and instructed said counsel to so with-

draw himself and forward to me my.case!files heréin pursuant to

NRS 7.055.

(3) I have received no response from said counsel, nor his

(4) V3.379
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«..0ffice, a.to my said instruction, I.I therefore submitting the
instant motion in good faith,as I have no other remedy than this
Court's power to enforce my statutory rights under NR5.7.055 to -
cause counsel to be withdrawn and to send me my said case file,.
Dated:This Day Of July . 2005.

. ol 7B e

MicRael T. Botelho, #80837
LOvelock Correctional Center
Post Office Box-359
Lovelock,Nevada.89419-0359, /
DEfendant/Affiant In Pro Se:

VERIFICATION UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY:

I do verify under the penalty of perjury that the above ...
Affidavit is True and Correct and is stated to the best of my Own
Personal Knowledge,and is made without benefit of a notary pursuant

to NRS5.208.165,as I'am incarcerated person.

i e Botelho,
DEfendant,In Pro Se: /

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MATLING:

I do certify that I mailed a True and Correct copy of the -
foregoing"NOTICE OF MOTION,AND MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF COUNSEL OF
RECORD,AND TRANFER OF RECORD{s)" to the Address(es) below on this-
B#th Day Of July ,2005,by placing same into the U.S. Mail,

[Vial-prison law library staff,in compliance with N.R.C.P.,5(b):

Mr. Richard A. Gammick,Esqg.
Office of District Attorney
{Washoe County]

Post Office Box-30083
RENQO, Nevada. 89520-3083.

Mr. John Reese Petty,P.D.
Office of Public Defender

[Washoe County]
350 Scuth Center Sireet
RENO, Nevada. 89501,
CC:FILE

LOvelock Correctional Center

Post QOffice Box-359
LOvelock,Nevada.82419-0359. Iy
IN FORMA PAUPERIS:

() V3.380"
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'.Case No. CR D 37‘2.?5_6

Dept. No. 3

IN THE SEcoMb JUDICTAL DISTRICT COURT OF I‘HE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND ‘FOR THE COUNTY OF w,q SHDE"" R —_

m{cl;\,AEL 1. ’.BUIELHO %@557 ).
! : )' .
PeTiTioNER )
)
Vs, ) CERTIFICATE OF
) INMATE'S INSTITUTIONAL ACCOUNT
LENARD Vi RE 51%5 mc Ne’\mon ) L
ETAL ' - )
'EieSlOoMDENT’ - - )
)
)

I, the undersignEd: hereby certify that M~ BDELHD * #—@&5—7—,
PETIT‘LDMF’QI above-named, has a balance of $_<Z._3_L on acco‘/ut £e

personal property fund for his use at Lovelock

hig credlt in the prisoners'

\
Correctional Center, in the County of Pershing, State of Nevada, where he is

Presently confined.

I further certify that said ‘PEDM& owes departmental charges

in the amoéunt of $ 19‘ and that the solitary security to hisz credit is

|
a saviggs, account establlshed pursuant to NRS 209.247(5) wn.th a balance of

$ 77 5&; which is inaccessible to him.

DATED THIS ,Qﬂ,é day of J(,(AJQ , 2005
-

Accouﬁting chnician
Inmate Services Division
Nevada Department of Corrections

- -Submitted by: -fy) ,-:Qgﬁ.ﬁ ol . #.80837 , on é/?ﬂ-/ 2665 |
. - ;f ’!I:] T ,g g
= W0 I 3 @3 :%83
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Micheal Todd Botelho 4 80837

r
Lovelock Correctional Center
P.0O. Box 359
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

)4/ 12 , 20005

Bublic Defender's Office
Lsouth Sierra

2y;_dot Reose PeTryy
Rene » Nevada 890] g9s5o/

RE: STATE V. Micheal Tgod Botelh@ase No.CRo3-2156

YOUR TERMINATION AS COUNSEL AND DELIVERY TO ME OF
ALL CASE MATERIALS PURSUANT TO NRS 7.055

Dear Counsel,

Be advised that as of this date your authority and
authorization as attorney of record in the above-entitled
case is terminated and all professional relationship is
ended. It is noted that I owe you no fees as you were
appointed to represent me due to my indigence.

Pursuant to NRS 7.055 I am demanding immediate delivery
to me at the above address of ALL papers, documents. pleadings
and items of tangible property which belong to me or were
prepared for me in relation to the above-entitled case.

Be advised that in the event I do not receive the
reguested materials in a timely manner as required by the
statute, i.e., five (5) days from the date above, I will
file a motion with the court to obtain an order directing
Your compliance with the Statutory requirements as reguested
herein.

o Thank you for your attention to this matter. I await
your prompt response. ' '

Sincerely,

Aol 7B AW o

cc: fFile

V3.384
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Certificate of Service

Pursuant te NRCP 5, I certify that I am an Inmate of |
Lovelock correctional Center Lovelock NV B8841%and that on this date 1 ca
used the foregoing document to be delivered to tha Party to this action.

X By U. 8. Mail

Dated this 12th day of April, 2005

Micheal Todd Botelho :

a2t

Washoe County Public Defenders Office
350 South Center St. Suite 600
Reno, NV 89501

ATTN: John Reese Petty

V3.385
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" Michael T. Botelho, #80837 'iZE% E:[)
Lovelock Correctional Center : i :

2P.0.Box 35689

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

“ v.r.i gt

—
@
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Defendant, In Proper Person

DC-0990DD7 1 BBE-0 17
£8/18:2005 03:68 PM

D8RUYY o7 wEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

MICHAEL T. BOTELHO,

STATE V¥S. MICHAEL TODD BOTEL 2 Pages

District Court
Washoe County

Ao

Defendant, Cage No. CRO3-2156
V. Dept. No. 3
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondant.

/

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION

Comes now, Defendant, Michael T. Botelho, in his Proper
Person, and submits the instant Request for Submission in the above
entitled action.

Petitioner requests that this court submit the NOTICE OF

to plead or otherwise respond to the aforementioned pleading.
Therefore, due to the fact that over thirty (30) days has expired
since the filing of the motion, it is now proper for adjudication

on the merits.

Dated this day, AUGUST 16, 2005.

Respectfully Submitted,

Dttty

V3.386
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAILING:

I do certify that I mailed a True and Correct copy of the

foregoing letter to the addresses below on this 16%¢h day of August,

2005, by placing same into the u.s. mail, [VIA]-prison law library
staff, in compliance with N.R.C.P.,5 (b):

Mr. Richard Gammick, ES4.
Office of District Attorney
Washoe County

P.O.BOX 30083

Reno, Nevada 89520

Myr.John Reese Petty

Mpr.S5ean Sullivan

Washoe County Public Defenders Office
350 South Center St.

P.O.BOX 30083

Reno, Nevada 89520

By:

Botelho, #G60837

.0.BOX 359
Loveloeck Corr. Center
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

CC:FILE

V3.387
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Code 3060

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Case No. CR03-2156
VS, Dept. No. 3

MICHAEL T. BOTELHO,

Defendant.

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF COUNSEL
The Court has reviewed and considered the points and authorities in support
of and in opposition to Defendant MICHAEL T. BOTELHO’s Motion for Withdrawal of
Attorney of Record and Transfer of Records filed on July 13, 2005 and submitted to
the Court for decision on August 18, 2005. Defendant requests the withdrawal of

counsel, John Reese Petty, Esq.
Good cause appearing, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:
(1) Pursuant to NRS 7.055, Defendant’s for Withdrawal of Attorney of
Record and Transfer of Records is GRANTED; and
(2)  John Reese Petty, Esq. immediately deliver to Defendant at his
Lovelock Correctional Center address, all documents, papers,

pleadings, discovery and any other tangible property in the above-

V3.388
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entitled case, at counsel’s expense, no later than ten court calendar
days of the date of this Order.
DATED this /%##*day of September, 2005.

EROME M. POLAHA
DISTRICT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that | am an employee of the Second Judicial District
Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe; that on the Zﬁ_
day of September 2005, | deposited for mailing a copy of the foregoing to:

Michael T. Botelho
Inmate # 80837

P. 0. Box 359
Lovelock, NV 89419

John Petty, Esq.
Washoe County Public Defender’s Office
Via Interoffice Mail

V3.390
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FILED

Electronically
06-04-2012:04:34:04 PM
oey Orduna Hastings

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OFJ ¥k court

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
Petitioner,
VS.
THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF
WASHOE,
Respondent,

and
JACK PALMER, WARDEN; AND THE
STATE OF NEVADA,
Real Parties in Interest.

Transaction # 2995756

No. 60556

5% kI LED

MAY 31 2012

CIE K. LINDEMAN
F SUAR i

CL

ORDER DENYING PETITION

This is a proper person petition for a writ of mandamus.

Petitioner seeks an order compelling the district court to grant post-

conviction relief. We have reviewed the documents submitted in this

matter, and without deciding upon the merits of any claims raised therein,

we decline to exercise original jurisdiction in this matter. NRS 34.160;

NRS 34.170. Accordingly, we

ORDER the petition DENIED.

Douglas

Gibb

0.

S

D

Parraguirre
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SuPREME COURT
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CC:

Michael Todd Botelho

Attorney General/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorne
Washoe District Court Clerk

V3.392
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Fex IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE:

Judge:

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:

Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

CRO03-2156
JEROME POLAHA

06-04-2012:16:34:04

06-04-2012:16:37:07

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Supreme Court Order Denying

Lori Matheus

You may review this filing by clicking on the
following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

GARY HATLESTAD, ESQ. for STATE OF
NEVADA

JOHN PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL BOTELHO
DIV. OF PAROLE &PROBATION
SEAN SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada electronic filing rules):

MICHAEL BOTELHO
STATE OF NEVADA

V3.393
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vS.
THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT 3
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF
WASHOE,
Respondent,

and
JACK PALMER, WARDEN; AND THE
STATE OF NEVADA,
Real Parties in Interest.

ORDER DENYING REHEARING

Rehearing denied.! NRAP 40(c).
It is so ORDERED.

FILED

Electronically
07-31-2012:10:58:10 AM
Joey Orduna Hastings

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADS® “out

ansaction # 3118134

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, No. 60556
Petitioner, C&Og LIS

FILED

JUL 25 2012

Do

Gibbons

for rehearing.

1As the documents received from appellant on both June 12, 2012,
and July 9, 2012, argue that this court wrongfully denied appellant’s
petition for extraordinary relief, we construe these documents as a petition

9338404
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cc:  Michael Todd Botelho
Attorney General/Carson City
Washoe County District Attorney
Washoe District Court Clerk ~

SupREME COURT
OF
Nevaba 2

(©) 19477 i V3395
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Fex IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE:

Judge:

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:

Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

CRO03-2156
JEROME POLAHA

07-31-2012:10:58:10

07-31-2012:10:59:46

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Supreme Court Order Denying

Annie Smith

You may review this filing by clicking on the
following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

GARY HATLESTAD, ESQ. for STATE OF
NEVADA

JOHN PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL BOTELHO
DIV. OF PAROLE &PROBATION
SEAN SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada electronic filing rules):

MICHAEL BOTELHO
STATE OF NEVADA

V3.396
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V3.397 FILED

Electronically
08-22-2012:02:18:12 PM
Joey Orduna Hastings

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVAD®#erk of the Court
Transaction # 3168665

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO, Supreme Court No. 60556
Petitioner, District Court Case No. CR032156
VS. ‘

THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF WASHOE,
Respondent,

and
JACK PALMER, WARDEN:; AND THE STATE
OF NEVADA,
Real Parties in Interest.

NOTICE IN LIEU OF REMITTITUR

TO THE ABOVE-NAMED PARTIES:

The decision and Order of the court in this matter having been entered on July 25th,
2012, and the period for the filing of a petition for rehearing having expired and no
petition having been filed, notice is hereby given that the Order and decision entered
herein has, pursuant to the rules of this court, become effective.

DATE: August 20, 2012
Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court

By: Lindsey Smith
Deputy Clerk

cc.  Michael Todd Botelho
Attorney General/Carson City/Catherine Cortez Masto, Attorney General
Washoe County District Attorney/Terrence P. McCarthy, Deputy District Attorney
Joey Orduna( Hastings, District Court Clerk ~

1 12-26049
V3.397
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Fex IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE:

Judge:

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:

Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

CRO03-2156
JEROME POLAHA

08-22-2012:14:18:12

08-22-2012:14:20:36

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Supreme Ct Not/Lieu/Remittitur

Mary Fernandez

You may review this filing by clicking on the
following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

GARY HATLESTAD, ESQ. for STATE OF
NEVADA

JOHN PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL BOTELHO
DIV. OF PAROLE &PROBATION
SEAN SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada electronic filing rules):

MICHAEL BOTELHO
STATE OF NEVADA

V3.398
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V3.399 FILED

Electronically
2015-07-24 09:12:41 AM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
CODE #2300 Transaction # 5060792 : mcholig
CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
#7147
P. O. Box 11130
Reno, Nevada 89520-0027
(775) 328-3200
Attorney for Respondent

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* * *
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
Petitioner,
V. Case No. CR03-2156
JAMES BENEDETTI, Dept. No. 3
Respondent.

/

MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada and moves this Honorable Court to dismiss the
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. This motion is based upon the records of this court, and of
the Supreme Court and the following points and authorities.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

This case appears to have been ignored by the petitioner. The untimely, abusive and
successive petition was filed on January 27, 2010, many years after the time allowed by NRS
34.726. Several days later, the petitioner apparently executed and mailed a motion to recuse
someone. That, however, was sent only to the Attorney General and the District Attorney and
was never filed or served on the court in chambers, as required by NRS 1.235(4).

This court determined that petitioner was indigent but there was no determination on

the request for counsel. Since then, the record goes silent.

V3.399
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NRCP 41(e) requires dismissal for want of prosecution when the plaintiff has failed to
bring an action to trial within five years of initiating the action. It has been over five years since
the petition was filed. NRS 34.780 calls for application of the Civil Rules to post-conviction
procedures if there is no inconsistent provision in chapter 34 of the Revised Code. There is no
inconsistent provision in chapter 34 and so the Civil Rules should apply and this case should be
subject to mandatory dismissal.

The court should also dismiss because the petition was untimely when it was filed and
the petitioner has given no cognizable excuse. Thus, dismissal is mandatory. State v. District
Court (Riker), 121 Nev. 225, 112 P.3d 1070 (2005).

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the
social security number of any person.
DATED: July 24, 2015.
CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney

By /s/ TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
Chief Appellate Deputy

V3.400
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County
District Attorney's Office and that, on July 24, 2015, | deposited for mailing through the U.S. Mail
Service at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, postage prepaid, a true copy of the foregoing document,
addressed to:

Michael T. Botelho #80837
Northern Nevada Correctional Center

P.O. Box 7000
Carson City, NV 89702

/s/ DESTINEE ALLEN
DESTINEE ALLEN
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FILED
Electronically
2015-07-24 09:54:16 AM

Return Of NEF

Jareroeline Bryant
Clerk pf the Court
Transacfion # 5060978

Recipients

ESQ.

DIV. OF PAROLE & - Notification received on 2015-07-24 09:54:15.645.
PROBATION

SEAN SULLIVAN, - Notification received on 2015-07-24 09:54:15.38.
ESQ.

GARY HATLESTAD, - Notification received on 2015-07-24 09:54:15.349.

JOHN PETTY, ESQ. - Notification received on 2015-07-24 09:54:15.676.
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Freexx IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE: CR03-2156

Judge:
HONORABLE JEROME M. POLAHA

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:
Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

07-24-2015:09:12:41

07-24-2015:09:53:38

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
Criminal

STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Mtn to Dismiss Pet

Terrence McCarthy

You may review this filing by clicking on the following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

GARY HOWARD HATLESTAD, ESQ. for STATE
OF NEVADA

JOHN REESE PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

DIV. OF PAROLE & PROBATION

SEAN B. SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada Electronic Filing Rules.):

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

V3.403
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CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
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Attorney for Respondent

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* k% %

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,

Petitioner,
V. Case No. CR03-2156
JAMES BENEDETTI and Dept. No. 3
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent. y

REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS, AND OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO
STRIKE

Petitioner Botelho filed a petition for writ of habeas corpus in January, 2010, and then
ignored it. Recently, the State moved to dismiss for lack of prosecution as allowed by the civil
rules. Botelho has responded and claimed that the State was required to answer and then move
this case along. He is incorrect. The duty to answer arises when the court orders an answer.
NRS 34.745. It is the duty of the plaintiff to move a case along. NRCP 41(e). The respondent,
the warden and the State, have no such duty.

As for the notion of the “standing” of the State, the court may notice that the caption of
the motion names the State. Furthermore, the petitioner identifies a state agent, the warden of
a state prison, as the respondent. NRS 34.745 also anticipates that the respondent may be

represented by either the Attorney General or the District Attorney. If by asserting lack of
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V3.440

“standing” Botelho actually meant something else, whatever it is it does not lead to “striking”
the motion to dismiss.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the
social security number of any person.
DATED: August 13, 2015.
CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney

By /s/ TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
Chief Appellate Deputy
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County
District Attorney's Office and that, on August 13, 2015, | deposited for mailing through the U.S.
Mail Service at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, postage prepaid, a true copy of the foregoing
document, addressed to:

Michael Todd Botelho #80837
Northern Nevada Correctional Center

P.O. Box 7000
Carson City, NV 89702

/s/ DESTINEE ALLEN
DESTINEE ALLEN
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Electronically
2015-08-13 10:39:15 AM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

CODE #3860 Transaction # 5091960 : ylloy

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
#1747

P. 0. Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89520
(775)328-3200

Attorney for Respondent

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
* k% %
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,

Petitioner,
V. Case No. CR03-2156

JAMES BENEDETTI, Dept. No. 3

Respondent.
/

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION

It is requested that the Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, filed on
July 24, 2015, be submitted to the Court for decision.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the
social security number of any person.
DATED: August 13, 2015.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney

By /s/ TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
Chief Appellate Deputy
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County

District Attorney's Office and that, on August 13, 2015, | deposited for mailing through the U.S.

Mail Service at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, postage prepaid, a true copy of the foregoing

document, addressed to:

Michael Todd Botelho #80837
Northern Nevada Correctional Center
P.O. Box 7000

Carson City, NV 89702

/s/ DESTINEE ALLEN
DESTINEE ALLEN
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V3.444 FILED

Electronically
2015-08-13 10:39:46 AM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

CODE #2526 Transaction # 5091963 : ylloy

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
#1747

P. O. Box 11130

Reno, Nevada 89520-0027
(775) 328-3200

Attorney for Respondent

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
* % *
MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO,
Petitioner,
V. Case No. CR03-2156

JAMES BENEDETTI and Dept. No. 3
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.
/

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF RESPONSIBLE ATTORNEY

COME NOW, Respondent, by and through Terrence P. McCarthy, Chief Appellate Deputy,
and hereby provides notice to the Court, all parties, and their respective counsel that Terrence P.
McCarthy, Chief Appellate Deputy, has replaced Gary H. Hatlestad, retired Chief Appellate Deputy,
as the responsible attorney for Respondent in all future matters related hereto.

Respondent herein requests that the Court and all parties herein update their service list
with Terrence P. McCarthy’s name and address in order to facilitate timely service of all documents
in the matter.

/77
/717
/77
/717
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.
DATED: August 13, 2015.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney

By /s/ TERRENCE P. McCARTHY

TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
Chief Appellate Deputy
Nevada Bar No. 2745
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County

District Attorney's Office and that, on August 13, 2015, | deposited for mailing through the U.S.

Mail Service at Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, postage prepaid, a true copy of the foregoing

document, addressed to:

Michael Todd Botelho #80837
Northern Nevada Correctional Center
P.O. Box 7000

Carson City, NV 89702

/s/ DESTINEE ALLEN

DESTINEE ALLEN

V3.446




V3.447

FILED
Electronically
2015-08-13 12:20:38 PM

Return Of NEF

Jareroeline Bryant
Clerk pf the Court
Transacfon # 5092474

Recipients

ESQ.

PROBATION

SEAN SULLIVAN, - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:20:36.607.
ESQ.

GARY HATLESTAD, - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:20:36.576.
JOHN PETTY, ESQ. - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:20:37.684.

DIV. OF PAROLE & - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:20:37.153.

V3.447
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Freexx IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE: CR03-2156

Judge:
HONORABLE JEROME M. POLAHA

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:
Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

08-13-2015:10:38:44

08-13-2015:12:19:48

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
Criminal

STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Reply

Terrence McCarthy

You may review this filing by clicking on the following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

GARY HOWARD HATLESTAD, ESQ. for STATE
OF NEVADA

JOHN REESE PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

DIV. OF PAROLE & PROBATION

SEAN B. SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada Electronic Filing Rules.):

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

V3.448


https://wceflex.washoecourts.com/reg?pageAction=SignIn&userName=<EFSPLogin/>&fwdRef=notify?pageAction=ViewNotifications%26searchBy=10%26searchString=3437714

V3.449

STATE OF NEVADA for STATE OF NEVADA
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FILED
Electronically
2015-08-13 12:26:35 PM

Return Of NEF

Jareroeline Bryant
Clerk pf the Court
Transacfion # 5092489

Recipients

ESQ.

PROBATION

SEAN SULLIVAN, - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:26:34.193.
ESQ.

GARY HATLESTAD, - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:26:34.162.
JOHN PETTY, ESQ. - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:26:34.287.

DIV. OF PAROLE & - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:26:34.256.
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Freexx IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE: CR03-2156

Judge:
HONORABLE JEROME M. POLAHA

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:
Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

08-13-2015:10:39:15

08-13-2015:12:26:07

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
Criminal

STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Request for Submission

Terrence McCarthy

You may review this filing by clicking on the following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

GARY HOWARD HATLESTAD, ESQ. for STATE
OF NEVADA

JOHN REESE PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

DIV. OF PAROLE & PROBATION

SEAN B. SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada Electronic Filing Rules.):

MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

V3.451


https://wceflex.washoecourts.com/reg?pageAction=SignIn&userName=<EFSPLogin/>&fwdRef=notify?pageAction=ViewNotifications%26searchBy=10%26searchString=3437715
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STATE OF NEVADA for STATE OF NEVADA

V3.452



V3.453

FILED
Electronically
2015-08-13 12:40:43 PM

Return Of NEF

Jareroeline Bryant
Clerk pf the Court
Transacfon # 5092514

Recipients

MCCARTHY, ESQ.

ESQ.
JOHN PETTY, ESQ. - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:40:43.2.

PROBATION

SEAN SULLIVAN, - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:40:43.107.
ESQ.

TERRENCE - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:40:43.232.

GARY HATLESTAD, - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:40:43.076.

DIV. OF PAROLE & - Notification received on 2015-08-13 12:40:43.169.
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Freexx IMPORTANT NOTICE - READ THIS INFORMATION *****
PROOF OF SERVICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

A filing has been submitted to the court RE: CR03-2156

Judge:
HONORABLE JEROME M. POLAHA

Official File Stamp:
Clerk Accepted:

Court:

Case Title:
Document(s) Submitted:

Filed By:

08-13-2015:10:39:46

08-13-2015:12:40:12

Second Judicial District Court - State of Nevada
Criminal

STATE VS. MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO (D3)
Notice of Change of Attorney

Terrence McCarthy

You may review this filing by clicking on the following link to take you to your cases.

This notice was automatically generated by the courts auto-notification system.

If service is not required for this document (e.g., Minutes), please disregard the below language.

The following people were served electronically:

TERRENCE P. MCCARTHY, ESQ. for STATE
OF NEVADA

GARY HOWARD HATLESTAD, ESQ.

JOHN REESE PETTY, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

DIV. OF PAROLE & PROBATION

SEAN B. SULLIVAN, ESQ. for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

The following people have not been served electronically and must be served by traditional

means (see Nevada Electronic Filing Rules.):

V3.454
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MICHAEL TODD BOTELHO for MICHAEL TODD
BOTELHO

STATE OF NEVADA for STATE OF NEVADA
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